

2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25

CITY OF DETROIT  
BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS MEETING  
August 29, 2024 at 3:00 P.M.

1 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Today is August 29th, 2024, 3:00  
2 PM. The Board of Police Commissioners is called the  
3 order. At this time, we don't have a quorum. It looks  
4 like they're coming in, but we will go to the Secretary's  
5 report pending us getting a quorum.

6 MS. GARNIER: Through the Chair. The report from the  
7 board secretary can be found under tabs 9 and 11, and  
8 there is no action to be had this afternoon. The  
9 announcements for today are the next meeting is Thursday,  
10 September 5th, at 3:00 PM here at the Detroit Public  
11 Safety Headquarters. The next community meeting is on  
12 Thursday, September 12th at 6:30 PM, at the Fourth  
13 Precinct at Kemeny Recreation Center, which is located at  
14 2260 South Fort Street in Detroit, 48217.

15 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Okay. Well, I should have done  
16 this ahead of time to welcome our new board secretary. We  
17 went through a lengthy process to bring her on. She is  
18 very skilled. And she has hit the ground running,  
19 starting this past Monday on the 26th. And I really  
20 appreciate her insight and her background is stellar, and  
21 we deeply appreciate you coming on. And I'm going to give  
22 you an opportunity to say some remarks before, you know,  
23 if any other commissioners want to chime in. But, thank  
24 you for taking this challenge on and standing with us to  
25 be able to serve the citizens of the city of Detroit.

1 MS. GARNIER: Thank you. I want to say to each board  
2 member and to the entire board, the department, police  
3 department, the entire staff, the week has been great,  
4 busy, of course and to the community, we are here to  
5 serve and support. So call on us at any time. We are  
6 ready and available to assist you in any way that we can  
7 within the parameters of the jurisdiction of the board.  
8 It's a pleasure and an honor to be a part of the team, of  
9 the leadership team for the city of Detroit. Thank you,  
10 sir.

11 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Absolutely. Do any board members  
12 have any comments?

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir. Mr. Chairman, I just  
14 want to welcome you on board, and I'm looking forward to  
15 working with you. But as you might not know, we have more  
16 staff for the board in the history of this organization.  
17 I would be looking forward to a detailed report in terms  
18 of their functioning duties and obligation to the board,  
19 because this is brand new staff in terms of their  
20 responsibilities and is enhanced. So I just want the  
21 board to be enlightened in terms of the process. Thank  
22 you, and once again, welcome aboard.

23 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Absolutely.

24 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes,  
25 I also want to just welcome you on board. I participated

1 in a couple of the interviews, but I did see the resumes,  
2 and your resume was very exemplary. And so we wish you a  
3 lot of luck. I do wish you a lot of luck, and we're here  
4 to work with you, directly with you, so please let us  
5 know how we can help. Thank you.

6 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Okay. Alright. And having said  
7 that I want to start our public comment, and give our  
8 other commissioners the opportunity to come on in. Oh,  
9 excuse me, we can have a prayer, you know what I'm  
10 saying?

11 MINISTER BLOUNT: In the name of Isaiah.

12 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: We have Chaplain Michael Kadado.

13 CHAPLAIN CADOTTE: Yes, sir.

14 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Okay. yes.

15 CHAPLAIN CADOTTE: Good and gracious God, we thank  
16 you for this day, and we give you all glory and praise to  
17 you, oh, Lord, as we come together, as a people serving  
18 the citizens and the great city of Detroit,

19 We thank you for this commission. We ask your wisdom  
20 upon them that they may be the good and faithful  
21 representatives of the citizens to the best police force  
22 that this nation has, the Detroit Police Department. We  
23 ask protection upon all the members of the DPD and the  
24 members of this commission. May the meeting be conducted  
25 in order may your wisdom flow through them. And at the

1 conclusion of this meeting, I ask for prayers of safe  
2 travel home for all those that are here and in your  
3 homes. I pray that, Lord, you give them peace, rest, joy,  
4 and love in your most holy name, be pray. Amen.

5 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Amen. Yep. Alright. Public  
6 comment until Commissioner Burton comes back, then we'll  
7 have a quorum.

8 MS. GARNIER: So we'll start with Minister Eric  
9 Blount.

10 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Well, he's here now. All right.  
11 So we do the introductions of commissioners

12 MS. GARNIER: Roll call. Darryl Woods, Chair -  
13 Present.

14 MS. GARNIER: Tamara Smith -

15 MS. GARNIER: Linda Bernard - Attorney Linda  
16 Bernard, District 2, present.

17 MS. GARNIER: I apologize, yes, ma'am.

18 MS. GARNIER: Cedric Banks - Present.

19 MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Willie Bell - Present,  
20 District 4.

21 MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Willie Burton - Present on  
22 behalf of District 5.

23 MS. GARNIER: Right. My bad. Okay.

24 MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Carter requested to be  
25 excused.

1 MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Moore also asked  
2 permission to be excused. MS. MS. GARNIER: Commissioner  
3 Hernandez -

4 MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Pressley -

5 MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Dewaelsche - Present.

6 MS. GARNIER: Mr. Chair, you do have a quorum.

7 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yes. All right. I entertain a  
8 motion for the approval of the August 29<sup>th</sup>, 2024 agenda.

9 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: So moved.

10 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Motion made by Commissioner  
11 Bernard

12 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Support.

13 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Seconded by Commissioner Banks.  
14 All in favor say, aye.

15 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

16 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Anyone opposed? The motion is  
17 carried. I entertain a motion for the approval of the  
18 minutes of August, 22. 2024.

19 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: So moved.

20 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Moved by Commissioner Bernard,  
21 supported by Commissioner Banks. All in favor say, aye.

22 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

23 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: The motion is passed.

24 Introduction of BOPC, staff, Chief of Police and elected  
25 officials and representatives.

1 MS. GARNIER: Staff present this afternoon are Mr.  
2 Robert Brown, Ms. Jonya Underwood, Ms. Teresa Blossom,  
3 Ms. Artemisia Joshua, Ms. Mary Barber, Jasmine Taylor,  
4 Mr. Drew Fries, acting supervising investigator Elgin  
5 Murphy, supervising investigator Ainsley Cromwell. Our  
6 ASL interpreters are Ms. Yakata and Dr. Stephanie Beatty,  
7 court reporter Don Handyside, Sergeant Quinn for Audio  
8 Visual, and Charles Henry, our media services video, as  
9 well as Dante Goss, attorney.

10 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: All right. Thank you. And so  
11 we're going to go to the Chief of Police report.

12 DC FITZGERALD: Good afternoon, honorable board.

13 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Good afternoon.

14 AC FITZGERALD: Just to give a couple quick updates.  
15 As of right now, we have no critically injured officers  
16 due to any on-duty injuries, which is fantastic. Our  
17 crime; we continue to trend in the right direction. We're  
18 looking at a 22% reduction in homicides, 141 this year  
19 versus 180 for the same time last year. Our non-fatal  
20 shootings are down 24% as of this morning. That's 438  
21 this year versus 576 last year. Excuse me. The robberies  
22 again, continue to trend down. They're at 24% reduction,  
23 733 this year, versus 964 last year, which gives us an  
24 overall reduction in part one violent crime of 11% over  
25 the same time last year. Carjackings continue to trend

1 down. We're down 34%, 75 versus 114 last year. Again, we  
2 are no way boasting or bragging about that because one is  
3 one too many for any one of these categories.

4 Our drifting drag racing illegal block party is  
5 going off rather nicely. A lot of folks. And they're  
6 really focusing on stopping the illegal parties, the  
7 street shutdown parties. We want to emphasize; we are not  
8 trying to shut down someone's backyard barbecue; none of  
9 that stuff. So quite a few weapons have been recovered.  
10 The past weekend, we took another couple weapons out of a  
11 block party that could have prevented further harm to our  
12 citizens. Mental health runs related calls for service;  
13 again, just in the last seven days' calls for service.  
14 We've had a grand total of 333. We've serviced 290 of  
15 them. Overdosed related issues are still responding to a  
16 lot of those as well. The last seven days, there were 223  
17 calls for service for overdose, and we had serviced 162  
18 of those. Just a couple of quick significant incidents  
19 that happened over the last week. On Sunday, August 25th  
20 at about 2:18 AM officers were dispatched out to Oakwood  
21 Hospital to investigate a fatal shooting. Our subject, or  
22 our victim, excuse me, showed up at the emergency room,  
23 and he was deceased upon arrival. What happened is, we  
24 went back to the investigation and realized in the 7,100  
25 block of St. John in the Fourth Precinct there was a



1 fight that occurred at a bar where one person pulled out  
2 a gun instead of his fists. and fatally shot this young  
3 man. We are looking for a red unknown maker model sedan,  
4 so we really need the community's help on this one. You  
5 can contact Crime Stoppers at 1-800-SPEAKUP or  
6 detroitrewards.tv.

7       The second incident I have was another fatal  
8 shooting, in the 5,100 block of Retirement on August  
9 27th. This is going to turn out to be a boyfriend  
10 girlfriend, ex-boyfriend scenario where the old boyfriend  
11 came to the house, the new boyfriend is there. They both  
12 exchanged gunfire at each other. Unfortunately, our  
13 victim got the worst of that. So any information that  
14 anyone can provide any witnesses to anything, if they  
15 could please; it would help strengthen our case. Once  
16 again, they can call 1-800-SPEAKUP, or detroitrewards.tv.  
17 Just a couple of quick positives. On Tuesday, we  
18 celebrated our 1000th business partner for Operation  
19 Greenlight. Actually, as of this morning, we're at 1,009  
20 which has just been a huge, huge help and benefit to this  
21 city. You can see the carjacking numbers have gone down  
22 drastically over the years since we've installed it.  
23 Robberies at gas stations party store. So we are very  
24 excited about that. Tomorrow morning the Detroit Tigers  
25 will be visiting the Fourth Precinct in recognition of

1 Tigers first responders' night. So that's going to be  
2 exciting for the folks at the Fourth Precinct. And then  
3 lastly, tomorrow we have a coffee and cake for Sergeant  
4 Lance Sullivan, who is leaving after 21, 27, excuse me,  
5 years of service. He has worked at Homicide for more  
6 years than I can count. He's also worked at the Violent  
7 Crime Task Force with the FBI. So we are going to miss  
8 Lance quite a bit. So that's all I have, sir, pending any  
9 questions?

10 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yeah. Let the record reflect that  
11 Commissioner Hernandez, Commissioner Pressley and  
12 Commissioner Smith are present. Any questions? Yep.  
13 Commissioner Dewaelsche.

14 COMMISSIONER DEWAEELSCHÉ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes,  
15 I just have a question with regard to the staffing  
16 report. It says here that for mental health and NPOs, we  
17 have budgeted 14 positions and none of them have been  
18 filled. Is there a reason for that? And maybe what is the  
19 process that officers become NPOs, I mean, mental health  
20 NPOs?

21 AC FITZGERALD: Yes, ma'am. And through the Chair, it  
22 was an add-on to our July 1, budget. So they will be  
23 filled rather quickly as we get more people out of the  
24 academy class, which helps us, because we have classes  
25 graduating every month. We'll be able to fill those

1 positions. Same with transit, if you see it on there; we  
2 send over a few to transit to get them going. And we'll  
3 fill as we get more out of the academy.

4 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: And then, can you tell me  
5 what the process is like? Who do you identify as this  
6 type of an officer?

7 AC FITZGERALD: Yeah. It'll go through each  
8 individual precinct. Some of the folks that are over at  
9 the CIT unit, now, they'll be identified to become an  
10 NPO, because as an NPO, there is a little increase in  
11 their pay, and they have to show that they have the  
12 requisite criteria to fulfill the role. So, it'll be up  
13 to the command officers at all the different precincts in  
14 different units.

15 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: So, I'm sorry, just one  
16 more quick question. So an officer would apply for that  
17 position if they have the criteria, the education or the  
18 training, correct?

19 AC FITZGERALD: Yes, ma'am. The jobs will be posted  
20 and they'll have an opportunity to put in for it.

21 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you,  
22 Mr. Chair.

23 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Thank you. Commissioner Bell.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. Assistant Chief, there  
25 was a lengthy article, maybe some of us took time to read

1 it concerning cold cases; and I assume that you are aware  
2 of that. And I know that individuals have come to this  
3 body complaining about the lack of service on cold cases.  
4 So wait... but I think it's a misunderstanding in terms of  
5 how we operate. I think we perhaps need an update from  
6 Homicide. I know Homicide is one of the hardest working  
7 units in the DPD and in this country in terms of homicide  
8 and shooting. So I think it's sort of unfair to have  
9 comments without knowing how cold cases work in terms of  
10 our interaction. As the Chief stated, he will look into  
11 that. But as we all know, they are extremely busy around  
12 the clock in terms of their demand for their job. And  
13 trying to work those cases up is a tremendous task to  
14 stay in contact. And I know personally, I have had family  
15 members who've been murdered and there's no closure. But  
16 I somewhat monitor it over the period of time. And they  
17 understand that without cooperating witnesses, we don't  
18 make a case, like in the Stevie series. So it's hard  
19 work, and we need people to come forward in reference to  
20 know something, say something and report it. Thank you.

21 AC FITZGERALD: Yeah, thank you. Through the Chair, I  
22 would suggest we have the unit come in and do a  
23 presentation for you, because we haven't made a lot of  
24 changes. Chief White, through his leadership, has added  
25 capacity to the unit. And you're absolutely right. If you

1 go back years and years, and on a good year, you close  
2 50% of the cases. So 50% are still left open. So those  
3 cases start to just pile up and pile up. And for a while  
4 there we had very few people working cold cases  
5 specifically. So we do have a new unit. We have a whole  
6 new process we'd love to share with you. So I would  
7 suggest we have them come in, do a presentation, and a  
8 whole board.

9 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: We've been in communication with  
10 the commander as well as the new captain, Captain  
11 Thirkill, who talked to him yesterday. And, you know,  
12 there have been problems with communication with  
13 citizens. And as we bring that to the attention of the  
14 Chief, and to the department, those situations are being  
15 corrected. And I know it's a marathon and not a sprint in  
16 this situation, but we'll be aligned to say there has not  
17 been any problems. There have been problems with  
18 communication with certain victims. And they have come  
19 into this meeting and thanks to second Deputy Chief Hope  
20 and others to be able to help some of these families who  
21 have been, you know, lost due the cracks; sometimes  
22 things happen. So I'm pleased with the new procedure and  
23 practice that you have in terms of making sure that the  
24 communication is more robust and is written in policy on  
25 how they need to communicate. And so we do look forward

1 to having them come to present because the citizens of  
2 the city of Detroit, who are victimized by violence  
3 deserve to have communication, and they deserve to be  
4 treated with dignity and respect. And we demand that, as  
5 a board, and the community demand that of us and of the  
6 department. Any other questions or comments? Commissioner  
7 Bernard.

8       COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you. I just want to make  
9 the public aware of a few things that the department has  
10 notified officers about. Number one, they're requesting  
11 volunteers to be engaged with youth in schools. And if  
12 any of you have children in high school or even grade  
13 school, there are two programs the department has  
14 initiated in the schools called the Sisterhood No  
15 Boundaries Program, and the Brotherhood No Boundaries  
16 Program. So any of your children or kids that you know,  
17 can become engaged with these two programs they're being  
18 headed by Deputy Chief Ewing and Tanya Leonard, the  
19 captain for Workplace and Community Resiliency. But the  
20 item that was most important, and of course there's a 5K  
21 walk at the DMC, and I think you probably have flyers  
22 about that at the desk right there. It's \$35 to  
23 participate. I've participated before. You get a lot of  
24 stuff for \$35, and it's really very engaging. In any  
25 event, what I wanted to note in particular was a roll

1 call training initiative that says it's very specific for  
2 our community about arrest. And it says, role culture...  
3 Now that's relevant. The purpose of the department arrest  
4 policy is to provide guidelines and procedures for  
5 officers of the Detroit Police Department in making  
6 lawful arrests. The detention of material witnesses to  
7 provide supervisory review of arrests for probable cause,  
8 and to provide for prompt judicial review of arrests.  
9 Short of the application of force, an arrest is the most  
10 serious action an officer can undertake. An arrest can  
11 cause repercussions throughout a person's life, even if  
12 eventually found not guilty or never brought to trial.  
13 The most important legal question facing an officer at  
14 the moment of arrest is the existence of probable cause.  
15 Not reasonable suspicion. It's probably because of a  
16 higher standard.

17 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: So, are there any further  
18 questions or comments for the...

19 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chairman, the community  
20 has a right to know this. Please. Please let me continue.  
21 Please let me continue. Without probable cause the  
22 arrest... it's in your binder. Without probable cause, the  
23 arrest is illegal, and the evidence of criminality that  
24 was obtained because of the arrest is inadmissible. It is  
25 the policy of DPD, one; that no person shall be arrested

1 with less than probable cause having been established at  
2 the time of the arrest. Two, that A DPD supervisor shall  
3 review every arrest, and in all instances in which a  
4 probable cause, determination is made, document the same  
5 on the incident report. Three, that for all arrests  
6 unsupported by probable cause, the review of arrest  
7 exception form UF001 shall be completed within 12 hours  
8 of the event. Four, that for every arrestee, a warrant  
9 request for arraignment on the arrest shall be submitted  
10 to the prosecutor's office within 48 hours of arrest.

11 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Okay.

12 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: There are just two more, Mr.  
13 Chairman. People have a right to know what and if they  
14 have to be arrested.

15 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Excuse me, we are under the chief  
16 of police report...

17 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: That's why this is...

18 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Excuse me, excuse me. The  
19 question, either you had a question or a comment with the  
20 chief, or you could have brought that under new business,  
21 according to Robert Rules of Order, you know, and so I  
22 was very, very patient with you, but it is out of order  
23 right now.

24 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chairman, respectfully, I  
25 disagree. This is part of the police department's actual



1 review..

2 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Are you asking a question,  
3 though?

4 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I'm referring so the community  
5 will know what the police have said in this..

6 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: We would want them to know. But  
7 either you have a question or comment for the chief or  
8 you do not?

9 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I don't think -[

10 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: You could have brought it through  
11 new business.

12 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I can comment on it while I'm  
13 talking about it.

14 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: So address it as a question to  
15 him then, so that we can be in order.

16 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I will be happy to do that.  
17 The fifth saying is that in every instance in which an  
18 exception of this is the department's prompt judicial  
19 review policy, the exception shall be documented on the  
20 warrant tracking whole form. The last comment, the last  
21 aspect of this deputy chief, is that all arrests in which  
22 an arraignment warrant was not sought, the warrant  
23 tracking whole form shall be completed within 12 hours.  
24 This is currently your policy?

25 AC FITZGERALD: Yes, ma'am.

1 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: So all officers have been  
2 informed of this at the meetings of daily review that you  
3 have every day with officers

4 DC FITZGERALD: Through the Chair. Yes, ma'am. One of  
5 the reasons the teletype has been issued is that risk  
6 management through the chief has been given the task to  
7 put out teletypes every week on things that are important  
8 to the department, and this is one of the most recent  
9 ones.

10 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: No arrests without probable  
11 cause, and it has to be documented.

12 AC FITZGERALD: Yes, ma'am.

13 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Okay. Thank you.

14 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Thank you. Commissioner Smith and  
15 then Commissioner Banks. Was it Banks first?

16 COMMISSIONER BANKS: However, you want to do it, Mr.  
17 Chair. However, you want to roll.

18 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Go ahead, and then we go Banks.

19 COMMISSIONER SMITH: Thank you. Through the Chair.  
20 AC, I was contacted earlier by the community asking about  
21 the amount of shootings that had occurred this summer  
22 with our youth. In particular, we have 46 minors that  
23 were shot under the age of 18 and 7 fatalities. So  
24 they're asking me, is there an uptick in the shootings of  
25 the children of our community, the youth? And just being

1 very concerned. And I didn't want to speak on it because  
2 I figured that you would know better than me.

3 AC FITZGERALD: Yeah. Through the Chair. Anecdotally,  
4 I would say it's going down. I think we have fewer this  
5 year, but I can get you

6 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Microphone.

7 AC FITZGERALD: I can get you a hard number. But just  
8 in the last week and a half, we've had a 6-year-old shot  
9 inside of their home, and an 8-year-old shot inside of  
10 their home. The community should be outraged by that.

11 COMMISSIONER SMITH: And those were drive-by  
12 shootings, correct?

13 AC FITZGERALD: Yeah. There's just...

14 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Microphone.

15 AC FITZGERALD: Reason and justification.

16 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Can you speak into the mic, sir.

17 AC FITZGERALD: Of course.

18 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Thank you.

19 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you.

20 AC FITZGERALD: Yeah. There's just absolutely no  
21 reason and justification for anything like that, for an  
22 8-year-old or 6-year-old in their own home to be shot. I  
23 could just do a quick search just for last week, one 16-  
24 year-old, and a 14-year-old who was playing with a gun, a  
25 16-year-old we believe was messing around with a gun. We

1 still have to prove it. He claimed he was climbing a  
2 ladder and fell off when he got to the hospital with his  
3 parents, he had a bullet hole in his leg. So we're still  
4 working through that as well. So we do have a lot of  
5 those as well. But other than that, the other two are the  
6 ones that stand out, the 8-year-old and 6-year-old, at  
7 least for the last week and a half.

8 COMMISSIONER SMITH: Okay. Thank you.

9 AC FITZGERALD: Certainly.

10 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Commissioner Banks.

11 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Thank you. Through the Chair.

12 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yes, sir.

13 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Assistant Chief Fitzgerald, why  
14 is the Homicide Task Force investigating the Sherman Lee  
15 Butler shooting? Why is Homicide investigating that?

16 AC FITZGERALD: Through the Chair. We have a Michigan  
17 State Police Task Force that we participate in, and  
18 that's the homicide task force. So because there were  
19 some Detroit officers present at the scene, it goes under  
20 the leadership of MSP who would investigate the matter.  
21 We do the opposite. If MSP were to shoot someone, Detroit  
22 would be the lead and the opposite is in fact the case,  
23 if it's a Detroit involved situation.

24 COMMISSIONER BANKS: I'm all set.

25 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Okay.

1 COMMISSIONER PRESSLEY: Chair?

2 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yes, sir, Commissioner Pressley.

3 COMMISSIONER PRESSLEY: Thank you. Through the Chair,  
4 I'll attempt to be brief. I sent a letter to the chief,  
5 but wanted to express this publicly on my commendations  
6 for Captain Sederick Dunbar who did an amazing job a  
7 couple of weeks ago at our "Rocking the Block," back to  
8 school rally. I mean, he really was over and beyond the  
9 call of duty, helping us roll out tables, taking up the  
10 trash; and we had a loose dog that showed up on the scene  
11 and he handled that as well. And so, again as we are  
12 critical, and rightfully so, in the oversight of the  
13 police department, again, I just wanted to state my  
14 commendations for Captain Sederick Dunbar. If you can  
15 share that with the chief.

16 AC FITZGERALD: Through the Chair, I certainly will.  
17 Thank you so much.

18 COMMISSIONER PRESSLEY: Thank you.

19 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yep. And as it relates to the  
20 Sherman Lee Butler incident the chief did release a press  
21 release, right?

22 AC FITZGERALD: Yes, sir.

23 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yep. And that can be found where?

24 AC FITZGERALD: You can go to our own social media  
25 site. It should be there as well. And I'm sure it's a lot

1 of the media sites as well.

2 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Absolutely. And then chief Judge  
3 McConico from 36th District released a press release as  
4 well, right?

5 AC FITZGERALD: I have not seen his.

6 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yeah. But he did. And so we  
7 encouraged the community to check out those press  
8 releases from the chief as well as the chief judge.  
9 Anything further?

10 AC FITZGERALD: No, sir.

11 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.

12 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yes, sir.

13 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Question. Chief, how are you  
14 doing?

15 AC FITZGERALD: Good, sir. How are you?

16 COMMISSIONER BURTON: On the behalf of many  
17 Detroiters, bringing their concerns here today, we'd like  
18 to know if the department will be investigating whether  
19 retired detective Barbara Simon has committed crimes  
20 while working for DPD. A number of her honorees have said  
21 she's routinely committed perjury, illegally detained  
22 witnesses and suspects. And this has all been documented,  
23 but she has not been held accountable. And so we'd like  
24 to know, is your office looking into this or not to  
25 investigate further?

1 AC FITZGERALD: Through the Chair, I have not seen...

2 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Or detectives.

3 AC FITZGERALD: Yeah, I have not seen any of these  
4 complaints or allegations, anything that was lodged  
5 through to the Wayne County Prosecutor's Office. They  
6 have their Conviction Integrity Unit that looks into  
7 these things. So it might be a better question to ask  
8 over there.

9 COMMISSIONER BURTON: But your office could also look  
10 into this since she was an employer of DPD, just as well,  
11 whether or not she committed these crimes while she was  
12 working for DPD.

13 AC FITZGERALD: Through the Chair, if those  
14 allegations are brought forward to us, yes, but they have  
15 not been.

16 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Okay. And my final question at  
17 this time, but maybe more questions later. When it comes  
18 to the Giglio Brady list, there were about a hundred  
19 officers' names that were on that list. How many of them  
20 are currently with the department now? And have any of  
21 those officers been promoted since that list came out, as  
22 well as has there been any disciplinary action from the  
23 department regarding those officers whose names were on  
24 the list? Has the department brought any discipline?

25 AC FITZGERALD: Yeah, and through the Chair, the

1 police department does not have a list for Giglio Brady  
2 impaired individuals. The only list that we've seen is  
3 through the Wayne County Prosecutor's Office. And I don't  
4 know when was the last time it was updated, and I have  
5 not seen that in a few years.

6 COMMISSIONER BURTON: But you have seen the list?

7 AC FITZGERALD: A few years ago.

8 COMMISSIONER BURTON: And there were about a hundred  
9 officers that could not testify in court. Is that  
10 correct?

11 AC FITZGERALD: I don't recall any of the names at  
12 this point.

13 COMMISSIONER BURTON: So we'd like to know from the  
14 community standpoint, are any of those hundred names that  
15 were on that list, are any of them currently working with  
16 the department? Has there been any discipline since that  
17 list report, and has any of those officers been promoted  
18 since that list or not?

19 AC FITZGERALD: And through the Chair, I would just  
20 request that you can put that in writing, through the  
21 Chair, so we can get it.

22 COMMISSIONER BURTON: It's on the record.

23 AC FITZGERALD: More detailed, instead of me writing  
24 it and going back.

25 COMMISSIONER BURTON: No offense, Chief, but it is a



1 public meeting, and the meeting is documented, and  
2 recorded. So, therefore, this is an official record, and  
3 my apologies to you, but this is an official record, so  
4 therefore you have it. You have your staff here and they  
5 heard the questions, and we have a new secretary to the  
6 board who is here as well. So you have the questions.

7 AC FITZGERALD: But I'm just confused... are you asking  
8 for this or is the board asking for it? Because there's  
9 a...

10 COMMISSIONER BURTON: The community has raised these  
11 concerns, brought these concerns to me, and I'm raising  
12 them on behalf of Detroiters.

13 AC FITZGERALD: Okay. More than happy to answer that  
14 question once I get it in writing.

15 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Okay. Any further questions?

16 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Yes, sir. One more short one,  
17 Mr. Chair. Okay. Through the Chair. Assistant Chief  
18 Fitzgerald, the bailiff called the Detroit Police  
19 Department on the shooting. When DPD got there, DPD began  
20 to tase the individual, but the tasers wouldn't take him  
21 down. I don't know if they malfunctioned or what, but  
22 then, the bailiff shot the man. Now why didn't he submit  
23 to DPD? DPD is on the scene. Why didn't he allow DPD to  
24 handle that situation? Because they came in. Hey, that's  
25 DPD, you're a bailiff

1 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Good question. Huh? Good  
2 question.

3 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Submit to DPD; you're a bailiff.  
4 I mean, let me hear a little feedback from the Assistant  
5 Chief that you may know of.

6 AC FITZGERALD: I do unfortunately, through the  
7 Chair, sir, I can't answer this. It is an open and active  
8 investigation. I can't get into the intimate details of  
9 the investigation.

10 COMMISSIONER BANKS: I'm sorry, but you understand  
11 what I'm talking about though, right?

12 AC FITZGERALD: Yes, sir.

13 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Thank you. Okay. I'm all set.

14 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: No further questions? You can  
15 move to the next item on you.

16 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Oh, Commissioner...

17 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Okay.

18 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I'm sorry. Deputy Chief  
19 Fitzgerald.

20 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Assistant Chief.

21 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Assistant Chief, it might be a  
22 good idea for the department to perhaps come back to us  
23 with a proposal on what happens when police come to the  
24 scene of an eviction that the bailiff, who is an armed  
25 person, has a legal CCW. I got that part, but they have

1 to stand down, in my opinion, when you get there until  
2 you decide, you know, what's going on and what to do. But  
3 a bailiff is not equal to you, and a bailiff doesn't have  
4 any of the protections obviously, or knowledge, quite  
5 frankly, that you have. All they have is a CCW, and they  
6 serve process and knock on doors. I got that part. But I  
7 think your question about Commissioner Banks as well. I  
8 do think the department should come back to us with  
9 something on that, so this can never happen again.

10 AC FITZGERALD: Through the Chair, it is the policy  
11 of the Detroit Police Department, that we don't  
12 participate in evictions.

13 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I know that.

14 AC FITZGERALD: We are only there to keep the peace,  
15 right? That's all we are to do. Without getting into too  
16 much of the details, this thing escalated quickly. And  
17 that's about all I can say on it at this point. So it  
18 wasn't our intent to go there and assist with the  
19 eviction or do anything with the eviction itself. It was  
20 to keep the piece, and I'll leave it at that

21 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: At this point, has this  
22 investigation been submitted to the Wayne County  
23 Prosecutor yet?

24 AC FITZGERALD: It is my understanding that it has.

25 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: So it's pending in the Wayne

1 County Prosecutor's Office for a decision on what to do  
2 with the case, right? Alright. Yes, sir.

3 COMMISSIONER BANKS: One more, quick one. Through the  
4 Chair. Assistant Chief, is DPD, in the near future,  
5 looking to file some charges on the bailiff or the court  
6 system, because he worked for the court system. Are they  
7 looking to file some type of charges or you can't put  
8 that out there yet, or you don't know?

9 AC FITZGERALD: Through the Chair. The warrant  
10 request has already been sent over to the Wayne County  
11 Prosecutor's Office.

12 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: It is in the prosecutor's office  
13 right now. They cannot speak on this and get ahead of the  
14 prosecutor. And until an announcement is made from that  
15 office, you know they or the chief judge has put in a  
16 statement to the public that they cannot get in front of  
17 this investigation. That's where we are right now. And we  
18 look forward to when all this is fully resolved, and that  
19 the video could be released to the public because we'll  
20 be asking for the video, and we have asked for the video  
21 to be released to the public. And once this investigation  
22 is completed, then that can happen. Alright. Yes,  
23 sergeant.

24 AC FITZGERALD: Yes, sir. After the last  
25 recommendation for Lieutenants, Sergeants and Detectives,

1 we had one of the members decline their promotion to the  
2 rank of sergeant. I'm okay with that. I'd rather have him  
3 do it now before he is made and all that stuff. And he  
4 decides not to do it. So, with that Chief White has is  
5 proudly recommending to be promoted to the rank of  
6 sergeant, Detective Johnell White.

7 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Okay. Alright. You'd like to  
8 speak about him?

9 AC FITZGERALD: He is a fantastic detective. He has  
10 spent a good majority of his time in the investigative  
11 realm of our department. His last assignment has been  
12 Homicide. He is a well-known homicide detective across  
13 the city and with our department, other departments. I  
14 think he would be an outstanding candidate for sergeant.

15 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: What is the pleasure on the  
16 board?

17 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: So moved.

18 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Second.

19 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Motion made by Commissioner  
20 Bernard, seconded by Commissioner Hernandez. All in  
21 favor, say aye.

22 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

23 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Or shall I ask for any  
24 discussion?

25 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Yeah, right here.

1 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Assistant Chief, did we get a  
2 spreadsheet on that? We didn't get a spreadsheet on that,  
3 did we?

4 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yes.

5 COMMISSIONER BANKS: We did? Okay.

6 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Alright. And yes, it is in the  
7 folder and it was also sent out through the email as  
8 well. And what I would say is that I did see this  
9 sergeant yesterday, or this proposed person to be  
10 sergeant yesterday in a community setting, and how he  
11 worked with a mother who had been victimized by homicide.  
12 I praised him there, you know, and said that this guy was  
13 stellar. The way he connected with that mother was  
14 absolutely amazing. And he talked about some of the  
15 things that he went through and the mother had cases  
16 unresolved, and she was very happy to connect with this  
17 particular person. And I didn't realize this was the name  
18 until today, and Commissioner Smith was there as well.  
19 So, based upon that, I'm very good with it. So all in  
20 favor say, aye.

21 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

22 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Anyone opposed? The ayes have it.  
23 You have it.

24 AC FITZGERALD: Excellent. Thank you.

25 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yeah. Next is oral

1 communications.

2 MS. GARNIER: So we're going to start with Minister  
3 Eric Blount, Ms. Charnita Williams. Mr. Jackie Hunt.

4 MINISTER BLOUNT: Good afternoon board.

5 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Good afternoon.

6 MINISTER BLOUNT: I am minister Eric Blount from  
7 Sacred Heart Catholic Church right here in Detroit. Let  
8 me walk you through this. At 1:30 this morning, there was  
9 a drive-by shooting. By noon, the news broadcast was in  
10 front of the house, video recording the front of the  
11 house. The number of the house was redacted. Why do I say  
12 this? I will never stop demanding that video be released  
13 within a day. If a little news agency can have a redacted  
14 report, then why can't this \$400 million police  
15 department. It doesn't take 45 days; it doesn't take 21  
16 days. And in fact, you did it with Hakeem Littleton the  
17 same day. So please do not fall for this false narrative  
18 about how long it takes the police department. And recall  
19 when there's a crime, they come to our residence saying,  
20 hey, give us the footage from your ring, video camera,  
21 doorbell camera. Okay, you want it in 45 days or maybe we  
22 should wait three years before we give it to you. But no,  
23 we give it to you right away. So this whole wait a while,  
24 wait 45 days is just totally ridiculous. And yes, it  
25 applies to Sherman Lee Butler. If you want us to trust

1 you, if you want us to respect you, if you want  
2 integrity, if you want to claim transparency, then just  
3 release the type of information that could help this city  
4 understand what happened to Sherman Lee Butler. Your  
5 officers were there. Release it; help the situation. But  
6 this 21 days, 45 days a week, whatever it is. I see my  
7 time is up.

8 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Thank you. Next.

9 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chairman, just while  
10 you're waiting for the next person. Do you want to  
11 respond to his question with the memo that the chief gave  
12 us on it?

13 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: It's on the website, as well as  
14 on our website.

15 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: It's on. Okay. There's a memo  
16 on it.

17 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yeah, that's what I was talking  
18 about, the press release that he put out.

19 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Dated August 22nd.

20 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yep. Thank you. Yes, you may be  
21 heard.

22 MS. WILLIAMS: There is an undercover officer in my  
23 shelter. I went to Internal Affairs and once again,  
24 Internal Affairs lied to me in my face. I am so  
25 disappointed in this system. How can I respect anything



1 to come out of anybody's mouth? I've been coming here for  
2 a year and a half. So someone's telling me I have  
3 undercover officers in this shelter, but nobody can  
4 confirm it. But once again, this undercover officer  
5 threatened me with his Draco. His name is Frank, and I  
6 believe he works there at the headquarters. This is not  
7 acceptable. I made plenty of reports. As a matter of  
8 fact, I made a report yesterday at OCI. When I left, I  
9 was at the bus stop, and a man tried to jump on me. I am  
10 so tired of my life being in danger because police  
11 officers do not respect their oath. It's a problem. I had  
12 just left OCI and I have to be concerned about my  
13 wellbeing when I'm out here on the bus. In the park, I  
14 saw my car that they impounded and two detectives were  
15 stalking me in my old car, illegally. This is so  
16 unbelievable. You all covered up my rape, covered up the  
17 fact that officers in this shelter; and as a matter of  
18 fact, it was an officer a few weeks ago who got a  
19 promotion, who is in this shelter. It's freaking  
20 unbelievable. If you do not respect your oath, you don't  
21 need to be here. Because if I went to court and lied to  
22 the judge, I'm going to be held accountable. If I lie to  
23 the police to make a false report, I'm going to be held  
24 accountable. It's my fault for lying. So at this point in  
25 time, if you all do not want to do your job correctly,

1 you don't need to be sitting on this board, none of these  
2 boards because at this point in time I'm frustrated. And  
3 when they violate my civil rights and my life is not  
4 acceptable.

5 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Next.

6 MR. HUNT: Through the Chair, thank you for the time  
7 that you have given me. An article came to me regarding  
8 the mayor's agenda on towing cars. An article said that  
9 over 8,000 vehicles have been towed from poor people. Now  
10 I'm wondering, they tried three times to tow mine. So  
11 mine was abandoned in front of my house. Can that be  
12 possible? But three times, mine was towed, tried to be  
13 towed three times with the three stickers. So now I'm  
14 wondering, I see motivation here. I see billboards with  
15 up to \$91,000 that officers can make. Truly, these are  
16 not the officers from the sixties and seventies. And when  
17 they come here to be promoted, they thank you and they  
18 say they wouldn't let you down. But I didn't hear  
19 anything about the citizens, where they live; some live  
20 and some don't. They totally ignored us. Are they going  
21 to respect us? That's a lot of money, I suppose, for the  
22 city and these tow companies. District 2, was it 10,000  
23 tickets they wrote, or was it 10,000 to 20,000 tickets?  
24 But somebody has motivated these officers. Do they even  
25 care about the poor or where they live? Are they bribed

1 with this \$91,000, from what? The new range is 51 to  
2 91,000. Are they bribed? Have they turned their backs on  
3 the citizens? Just a thought. Thank you for my time.

4 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Thank you. Next.

5 MS. GARNIER: The next speakers will be Lieutenant  
6 Mark Young, Ms. Fredia Butler, and Ms. Michelle George.

7 LT. YOUNG: Good evening.

8 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Good evening.

9 LT. YOUNG: You don't have to look far. And I mean  
10 that to see what we face every day. Crime stats down,  
11 outstanding. I don't hear enough applause about that. It  
12 doesn't happen by itself. It happens because men and  
13 women take sacrifices. It's not about what they make  
14 every day. It's about who they are and how they step up.  
15 I don't hear enough about that. Accusations are loud,  
16 apologies are weak, and often silent. There were three  
17 law enforcement officers killed in this community, in  
18 this region recently. Crickets. What I did hear for the  
19 three law enforcement officers was support from their  
20 communities. We are no less than anybody else. We have  
21 more fallen than anybody in this region. We must do  
22 better to support our people. You hear people criticize  
23 the Detroit Police Department all the time. And  
24 unfortunately, some might be warranted. But what you  
25 don't hear is the praise. I could live with criticism. If

1 you are willing to stand up and call a ball, a ball and a  
2 strike, a strike. We face unprecedented challenges every  
3 day. And I'm proud of the people that are representing my  
4 colleagues. If you are willing to be one-sided, then you  
5 are biased and prejudiced. Speak up, step up, call it  
6 right, or don't call it. And I will continue to call out  
7 those. I'm honored to be a member of this community. I  
8 live in this city. I'm honored to be in this police  
9 department. Let's get it right together. CHAIRPERSON  
10 WOODS: Thank you. And before you speak, my colleague  
11 wanted you, Assistant Chief, to speak about the towing  
12 process, and how that works.

13 AC FITZGERALD: Yeah. And through the Chair, I think  
14 the key word that was stated there is that his abandoned  
15 vehicle was in front of his house. We are not going to  
16 leave abandoned vehicles on the streets and the yards.  
17 And there are city ordinances that we follow. We tag the  
18 car; we give the owners ample time to remove the vehicle.  
19 But we're unapologetic about getting rid of the abandoned  
20 vehicles, abandoned boats, abandoned campers across the  
21 city. And we're going to continue. We've actually set a  
22 metric. It's something that we look at every week, every  
23 two weeks we go to CompStat, we look at those kind of  
24 things. And it's to make sure that we're doing everything  
25 we can to make sure the city is safe and they don't have

1 to see boats and campers and those things in the middle  
2 of the street and the backyard and backyards that have  
3 five, six cars that's just been sitting back there and  
4 rodents are climbing all through it. We've had a lot of  
5 complaints. A lot of complaints about abandoned vehicles.

6 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Okay, thank you.

7 AC FITZGERALD: Certainly.

8 MS. BUTLER: Good afternoon. Last Thursday, after  
9 leaving the Board of Police Commissioners meeting, I went  
10 to the area of Wayne State University to locate an  
11 address. I had agreed to meet a young man whom I had  
12 volunteered to help register students Saturday, August  
13 24th. The campus has made big changes since I attended,  
14 and I was lost. I even made a wrong turn and ended up  
15 going the wrong way. I pulled over and faced one of  
16 Detroit's finest. He stopped traffic and I explained my  
17 predicament. He had me follow him and explained where to  
18 locate the address. The address did not exist. The  
19 student was late and had given poor information. After  
20 calling Luca the student who has solicited me and others,  
21 his setup was in the backyard of Old Main, under  
22 activities of the law school and other departments. He  
23 established himself a spot on the corner of Second and  
24 Warren, with his forms and candy.

25 I had warned our group that we would be working with

1 a student. We registered students to vote and got some to  
2 even volunteer. The purpose of telling this story is to  
3 praise the kindness of the officer who was on his  
4 motorcycle directing traffic on Third Street that  
5 afternoon. I didn't get his name and wanted to send him a  
6 letter thanking him for his patience and to inform Chief  
7 White about one of our finest. I like to write about the  
8 positive work our officers are doing in the city. We need  
9 to hear more about many of our officers who are great  
10 leaders. I will tell more about this story next week.  
11 Thank you.

12 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Alright. Thank you.

13 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Chairman, can we find him? Can  
14 they find out who it was so she can let the officer know  
15 how much she appreciated his service?

16 AC FITZGERALD: Yeah. Through the Chair. I think if  
17 we can get the date and time and stuff, we can figure it  
18 out.

19 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you.

20 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Alright, thank you. Next?

21 MS. GARNIER: After Ms. George, it'll be Mr. Ronald  
22 Foster, and then we'll go into Zoom.

23 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Alright, thank you.

24 MS. GEORGE: Good evening to Chairman Woods, this  
25 honorable board, and to Assistant Chief Fitzgerald. I

1 just want to make the comment as Lieutenant Young was  
2 stating, yeah, we do see the work that Detroit police  
3 officers are doing every day. I know, I see it because I  
4 know what they're working with. We have one in five  
5 people working with mental health challenges, and we see  
6 the attacks that happen in our system. So I do want to  
7 thank DPD because if I need them, I'm going to call them.  
8 So I know. I do thank them for their work and their  
9 service because I've seen Commander Chambers. It's always  
10 good to see him. I've seen the work that he's done. The  
11 Second Police Precinct Hope' deputy chief Hope, I hope I  
12 pronounce that right. Deputy Chief Hope and Lieutenant  
13 Young. So I know the work. But with that being said, I do  
14 want to just acknowledge that with policing in the  
15 community, there is stress across the country, but it  
16 doesn't relate to DPD. We see what's happening. But I  
17 would say, I do agree that the cameras should be released  
18 immediately. That way you will have transparency in the  
19 community. And because what we see, not all officers,  
20 because I've had officers, state police help me in a lot  
21 of things. But a lot of times with what happened just  
22 with Reverend Charles Williams of National Action  
23 Network. In Bloomfield, it could have changed in a  
24 minute. And like he stated, I interviewed him on my show.  
25 I interviewed him. The skin color was a trigger in

1 Bloomfield, but he was able to rectify that. So like  
2 Lieutenant Young said, they do good. And it's just like  
3 nurses. You find a few bad apples of nurses. But I just  
4 want to say, if you release the video, the transparency  
5 is there. And I won't even relate. DPD is high standard  
6 compared to the communities in Texas, I have to say that.  
7 But what we're seeing across the country, what happened  
8 with Sonya Massey. That's all I want to say. Thank you.

9 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Thank you. Next.

10 MR. FOSTER: Good evening.

11 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Good evening.

12 MR. FOSTER: Through the Chair. Just a few things.

13 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Your name please?

14 MR. FOSTER: My name is Mr. Ronald Foster. I want to  
15 just say a few things. Just like in sports, your conduct  
16 matters on and off of the court, and there are penalties  
17 for not conducting yourselves appropriately off the court  
18 as public servants. First thing I want to say is that  
19 it's important that our police build relationships with  
20 the community. Not just calling the community when you  
21 need information or need things. Second thing, I  
22 personally would like to hold the union accountable for  
23 all color of law violations opposed to our risk  
24 management and the citizens and community here. Thirdly,  
25 you can start a relationship by enforcing the crime



1 victim rights. If more resources are needed, and let the  
2 community know so that we get the resources that's  
3 needed. But we can no longer accept apologies from the  
4 police for not enforcing crime victim rights under MCL  
5 780.766-780.834. I want to give a shout out to Commander  
6 Chambers as well. I want to give a shout out to Commander  
7 Lever. Commander Dunning. I always see them in the  
8 community. They welcome the kids to school, Twelfth  
9 Precinct. I've been asking for more visibility around the  
10 schools. They have been visible since day one around the  
11 schools before and after. So I think it's appropriate to  
12 acknowledge that, so they could keep up those good works.  
13 And just more importantly, Mr. Fries, he is a valued  
14 asset to you guys in this department. And I will just say  
15 that personally, and I would like for you guys to give  
16 him a little more consideration if opportunities opened  
17 up. He has proven himself in the community, and more  
18 importantly, in this building right here, to be of value  
19 to this department. Keep up the good work where the work  
20 is good, and tighten up where it's loose. I appreciate  
21 you all for listening.

22 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Thank you very kindly.

23 MS. GARNIER: Mr. Chair, we're going to go into Zoom.  
24 We have six speakers in Zoom. The first speaker would be  
25 Steven Haring. If you could please announce your name.

1 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: You may be heard.

2 MR. HARING: Okay. Thank you. Steven Haring, District  
3 6. So I have a few questions. You know, I've been hearing  
4 a lot about Sherman Lee Butler, what happened in Palmer  
5 Park over on social media, and there's like no  
6 information about it. Like, was he armed? Were there  
7 videos? There's really no information about it at all.  
8 And of course, the crazy anti-eviction people are  
9 constantly going around spreading misinformation about  
10 it. And it's really hard to know because I mean, DPD  
11 hasn't gave anything out. I mean, after Hakeem Littleton,  
12 they released the video right away and showed that the  
13 murder was justified. But of course, Kristin Taylor and  
14 all those, de-fund police are still spreading  
15 misinformation about it. But still, our taxpayer money is  
16 paid for the police, and we should know right away what  
17 happened. And the bailiffs too. A lot of these bailiffs,  
18 from what I've heard, they're not usually the most  
19 professional. And a lot of times, it always is better to  
20 have the police present when there is an eviction,  
21 especially towards someone who might be mentally ill,  
22 someone who might not exactly be stable, because this has  
23 happened so many times and that's just going to keep  
24 happening. I think there needs to be more transparency,  
25 and I don't know if there are cameras in the building or

1 not, but they should be released right away.

2 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: All right. Thank you. Next.

3 MS. GARNIER: The next speaker would be Ms. Taura  
4 Brown. After her, it would be Chris Gilmore Hill. After  
5 Mr. Hill, it would be Election Integrity Roo. Please  
6 again, state your name for the record.

7 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: You may be heard.

8 MS. BROWN: Hi, my name is Taura Brown, and I'm one  
9 of those crazy people from the anti-eviction. I'm with  
10 Detroit Eviction Defense. And I just want to say, we  
11 shouldn't be waiting this long for camera footage. I sent  
12 you all an email. Nobody responded as usual. I'm sorry,  
13 Mr. Woods did respond to one of the emails I sent.  
14 However, as a citizen sitting at home, I have been able,  
15 since the last time I spoke with you all, or sent an  
16 email to identify three additional officers in that  
17 video. One of them in particular, whose name I will not  
18 mention, just because I am not a hundred percent sure  
19 that he is the officer. But based on the several videos  
20 and news clippings I've seen, this particular officer has  
21 been in every single one of them. He is actually new to  
22 the force and has only been on the force as of the time  
23 Sherman Butler was killed, five months.

24 And I'm still trying to figure out if there was an  
25 equipment failure. Nobody's been able to tell us that,

1 nobody's been able to give us any information about the  
2 officer who tased him. I found more information on my own  
3 than we've been given as a public. Nobody has been able  
4 to explain why. Based on the press release that came out,  
5 that is in total opposition of what Captain Rodriguez  
6 said on the news; how a person half naked, just waking up  
7 out of bed, who had just had surgery three weeks prior to  
8 remove part of their toes, and leaping and hopping all  
9 over this bedroom being shot with tasers, and how an  
10 armed police officer had to be protected from this person  
11 by a bailiff. None of that information is clear. There is  
12 no video we've received. All the statements coming from  
13 the police actually are more inconsistent than anything  
14 that any activist or organizer has published online. And  
15 the fact that the assistant chief or assistant deputy,  
16 whoever he was, was in here not answering questions and  
17 demanding things be put in writing. I don't like to use  
18 the term conspiracy, but it feels like the police are  
19 conspiring, and trying to hide things from the public.  
20 Thank you.

21 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Thank you. Yep. You want to  
22 respond to that AC?

23 AC FITZGERALD: Oh, no, I'm sorry. I'm just writing  
24 down.

25 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: You may be heard.

1 MR. HILL: My name is Chris Gilmer Hill. I'm a  
2 lifelong resident of the city's second district. I'd like  
3 to firstly echo the comments of the previous commenter  
4 and Minister Blount. There's no reason for there to be  
5 this sort of a delay and promptly releasing video footage  
6 to clarify, to concern Detroiters what happened on that  
7 day. By all accounts an innocent person was killed in the  
8 process of executing an eviction, right? It boggles my  
9 mind that anybody would consider themselves pro addiction  
10 in this city. But the voices that you should be listening  
11 to are the community voices of the people who are  
12 outraged by these ongoing evictions, by the violence they  
13 have heard and who want answers. That should be a top  
14 priority of both the department and of this commission in  
15 your oversight duty to ensure that this information gets  
16 released when DPD is falling short as they are available.

17 I'd like to also thank Commissioner Burton for  
18 pushing forward our community concerns about disgraced  
19 detective Simon, and to, again urge that the community's  
20 concerns would be the top priority of the representatives  
21 of the DPD here today to answer questions. DPD shouldn't  
22 be trying to draw distinction between whether something  
23 is a community concern or commission concern, or one  
24 commissioner's concern. And the question is being asked  
25 of DPD; DPD has a moral and legal responsibility to

1 provide those answers to whichever commissioner asked it.  
2 And this board needs to stand behind every commissioner  
3 who's asking these questions to get answers for our  
4 committee. I'd also like to thank Commissioner Bernard  
5 earlier today for taking time to educate the community  
6 and to get this issue on the record details about the  
7 probable policy. I'd like to discuss to the Chair of the  
8 board, this is how we should be using our time here. This  
9 is not the place to praise the police, as an earlier  
10 commenter commented. This is the time and place for  
11 police oversight. Commissioners, Bernard and Burton are  
12 working towards that. And so far today, nobody else has.  
13 Thank you.

14 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Thank you. And before we go to  
15 the next commenter, I want to make it absolutely clear;  
16 and people need to read the charter of the city of  
17 Detroit in terms of what the board's responsibilities  
18 are. We don't do criminal investigations and all of that.  
19 We have nothing to do with criminal matters, period,  
20 point blank. And so the charter is very, very clear. And  
21 we strongly encourage people to read that in terms of  
22 what is our authority, even with policy. We can't willy-  
23 nilly makeup policy out of the sky. It is going to take  
24 us, the department as well as the mayor to work together  
25 to get agreement on policy. And so we wish we had more

1 powers and we wish that the charter will be revised to  
2 give us these powers, but we don't have all the powers  
3 that the community thinks that we have. And so the next  
4 commenter.

5 ELECTION INTEGRITY ROO: You finished.

6 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: You may be heard.

7 ELECTION INTEGRITY ROO: Okay. There was, listen  
8 closely, you've been in jail. Listen closely. Assistant  
9 Chief Fitzgerald, I want you to listen closely as well.  
10 And everybody in that room, the entire room, I want you  
11 all to hear this. You cannot take a nine millimeter  
12 weapon and shoot yourself in the left side with your left  
13 hand on the gun at the trajectory that the bullet  
14 traveled for DPD case, 20-11112, the death of Kaniesha  
15 Coleman. You cannot do it unless your arm is a piece of  
16 cooked spaghetti. And if you did, and we're able to  
17 accomplish that trajectory, there is no way that you  
18 wouldn't leave a gun, burn a gun stippling on the entry  
19 wound. No way. It's impossible. The laws of physics say  
20 it's impossible. Now, we have seasoned, supposedly  
21 seasoned homicide detectives and homicide investigators  
22 working for the department. They cannot understand that  
23 you can't do it and not leave a gun burn on the entry  
24 wound.

25 Kaniesha didn't have any gun burns on the entry

1 wound, and she didn't use her right hand. Kaniesha was  
2 left-handed, left side in the abdomen, no gun burns, no  
3 gun stuff on the wound, no suicide weapon at the scene,  
4 and her own dying words were, she did not shoot herself.  
5 Darryl Woods, you better check yourself because you  
6 stepped over your boundary as the chairman by telling  
7 somebody not to do something that the board voted on and  
8 approved for them to do. It came from you. I can figure  
9 that much out. There isn't anybody who can tell me  
10 anything.

11 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Thank you. AC, this situation you  
12 guys have declared as a suicide, right?

13 AC FITZGERALD: Yes, sir.

14 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: What did the state police say?

15 AC FITZGERALD: That it was a suicide as well.

16 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Absolutely.

17 AC FITZGERALD: Yes.

18 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Alright, thank you.

19 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Where's the report?

20 MS. GARNIER: The next commenter would be Mr.  
21 Jahdante Smith and former Commissioner William Davis.  
22 Again, please state your name for the record.

23 MR. SMITH: Good afternoon. May I be heard?

24 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yes, you may be heard.

25 MR. SMITH: Good afternoon. My name is Jahdante Smith



1 for the record. I am very disappointed in what I've heard  
2 on this call. I've been trying to be very diplomatic  
3 about what I've been listening to. But what I've heard on  
4 this call from this Chairperson and all of these praise  
5 the police, I'm going to call it the Chairperson, Darryl  
6 Woods. I'm going to call out Commissioner Hernandez. You  
7 guys are protecting the police. Your job is not to  
8 protect the police. It is to uphold the complaints of  
9 citizens. I also want to say Sergeant Dalio of Homicide  
10 needs to be addressed. The Homicide Department of DPD is  
11 terrible. Sherman Lee Butler's video should be released.  
12 Also, the Seventh Precinct is also terrible. So, I'll  
13 work with a group called Mothers Keeping Boots on the  
14 Ground. Three mothers who all have murdered children in  
15 the city of Detroit, and the complaints that they give me  
16 about homicide versus what I've just heard from this  
17 board about how good homicide is doing; it's terrible.

18 Also, AC Ewing, you should be listening very closely  
19 to what I'm saying as well. Also, these murders that are  
20 being called suicide. There were two people in the last  
21 meeting, or one of the recent meetings that I heard, both  
22 saying that there's a murder being confirmed as suicide  
23 that is not a suicide. If detectives don't want to do  
24 their job, fire them, move them to different departments,  
25 or move them to different sections, they should not be

1 homicide detectives. That is not what their job is, to  
2 deem things, suicides that are homicides. Also, I want to  
3 say AC Ewing, the next time we speak, it may be with one  
4 of the council members. Seems like you listen, and you  
5 guys had your notepads out for real, when I come with a  
6 council member, I know you remember me speaking with you  
7 about Lieutenant Cole with councilmember Santiago Romero.

8 I will come back with another council member; maybe  
9 in the next meeting, there may be more than one, but  
10 whatever I have to do to get justice and to get you guys  
11 to listen, we're going to do that. And also the Sherman  
12 Lee Buller situation, you guys don't deal with criminal  
13 matters, but you can come up with a director for the  
14 entire department. You guys can get that video released,  
15 and I want that video released. We have an entire  
16 coalition. We will not stop until we get that video  
17 released. Also, I will not stop until I get all of the  
18 complaints that I have handled.

19 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Thank you. Anyone further?

20 MS. GARNIER: Former Commissioner Davis.

21 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: You may be heard.

22 MR. DAVIS: Good afternoon. Can I be heard?

23 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yes, sir.

24 MR. DAVIS: Okay. Again, I would like to say I think  
25 DPW and the BOPC should be tracking wrongful arrests in

1 the city of Detroit. Also, I agree with Commissioner  
2 Burton, in that you all should have in your possession a  
3 list of the officers that are not allowed to testify. You  
4 know, to me, if an officer's not allowed to testify or if  
5 an officer misrepresents or falsifies official  
6 documentation, they should not be an officer. Also, you  
7 all were just talking about abandoned vehicles. There has  
8 been an abandoned vehicle on my block on the Appoline  
9 between Joy and Oakman for over a month that has  
10 profanity scraped on it, and has a flat tire. But nobody  
11 seems to want to do anything about it. So it's just  
12 sometimes you all do stuff and sometimes you all don't,  
13 because I've called twice on it.

14 Also more needs to be done to make sure that people  
15 are aware of the scope of your authority. You know, there  
16 are things that you all can do and things that you all  
17 can't do, but you all need to be doing more public  
18 service announcements to let people know, you know, the  
19 fact that you all can do stuff like subpoena stuff. You  
20 all can do a number of informed communities. You all  
21 should have some community events where you all are  
22 explaining what you all can do and what you all can't do.  
23 I think this board can do a little bit better, and I  
24 think it would be much better if more of the members were  
25 there more regularly. During the time I was on the board

1 and since then, I have not missed a single meeting. I  
2 think if you want to be on the board, especially if you  
3 are an appointee, you should be there. If not, it should  
4 quit. Thank you.

5 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Thank you. That was the last one?  
6 Okay. Let's go to Human Resources.

7 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Chairman, may I just comment  
8 briefly on...

9 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yes, ma'am.

10 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: What we've heard? Two things.  
11 The board did vote for us to receive... Chief Fitzgerald to  
12 receive a copy of the memos regarding, or the reports  
13 regarding Kaniesha Coleman. Regarding both of the state  
14 police matters, as well as the Detroit Police Department  
15 one, we still haven't received those. Secondly, regarding  
16 the release of the videos, you may recall that I had made  
17 a... you weren't here yet, Chair Woods, that our videos be  
18 released within 30 days, similar to what it is in the  
19 city of Chicago, and many other major metropolitan areas,  
20 much larger with 20,000, 25,000 officers. Those videos  
21 are posted online in Chicago. You can pull them up. I  
22 mean, hundreds of them within a person laying there,  
23 bleeding, the whole thing. You see everything within 30  
24 days.

25 I proposed that to the board at that time because we

1 wanted to send a resolution to the City Council to make  
2 it an ordinance. The board at that time, unfortunately,  
3 voted it down. This is a major issue. I know that. I  
4 think you guys want to do it every 45 days. There's no  
5 precedent for that. And the community... this is a video  
6 age like you said earlier. You mentioned social media  
7 several times in your report. The community has a right  
8 to know, have a right to see and make their own choices.  
9 And I saw the memo saying that you didn't want to release  
10 the video about the taser incident because this was a  
11 private citizen. It doesn't matter. The police were  
12 there. They took the video and it should be released to  
13 the community. I mean, there was police involvement,  
14 whether it was personally, I shoot you or the police  
15 shooting somebody, the community wants to know. And I  
16 really do think that you need to revise your position as  
17 stated in the memo regarding the release of the video. It  
18 doesn't hurt anybody. It was a public incident.

19 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Commissioner, if you can  
20 remember, I don't know if you were here last week when  
21 you guys passed a motion for it to go back to the policy  
22 committee to discuss with the department on whether it  
23 can be released in 21 days. So that...

24 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Okay. I wasn't present, I  
25 wasn't here. Thank you. Thank you for letting me know. I

1 appreciate that.

2 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: All right.

3 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.

4 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yes.

5 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I just want to just add that.

6 The board has always had its own attorney, and it was in  
7 1963 when Dr. King gave the I Have a Dream speech. And in  
8 1973, the first African American mayor was elected by the  
9 name of Coleman Young, here in the city of Detroit. And  
10 then he put together the Board of Police Commissions in  
11 1974. Now, it's the year that we are celebrating 50 years  
12 of police oversight, and we still don't have an attorney.  
13 Corporation counsel may send an attorney to the board  
14 meeting from time to time, but the board has been so  
15 unique by having its own attorney. And we had some pretty  
16 good attorneys that represented this board and the  
17 board's interest, as well as adhering to the community.  
18 And Commissioner Linda Barnard was also one of those good  
19 attorneys that once represented this board. So, at this  
20 time, I'd just like to make a motion that the Board of  
21 Police Commissioner's post the attorney position because  
22 we are desperately in need of an attorney to represent  
23 this body.

24 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Currently we do have an attorney  
25 on an interim basis who is from the law department. But

1 that attorney will be dedicated to the Board of Police  
2 Commissioners, and his office Mr. Dante is sitting there  
3 now, his office will be here in our office. And so I was  
4 going to bring that up under new business, but, can you  
5 introduce yourself to the board? And we can have some  
6 discussion on it after that? But Mr. Dante.

7 ATTORNEY GOSS: Thank you, commissioner. My name is  
8 Dante Goss. I'm the Assistant Corporation Counsel for the  
9 city of Detroit Law Department. And I'm just here to  
10 assist the board in any way possible that's needed.

11 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair, when the  
12 board needs an immediate opinion on something, who is the  
13 department is going to side with, the Detroit Police  
14 Department, or the Board of Police Commissioners. And so  
15 that's why we are an independent body where we have  
16 always had our own attorney. Yes, all of the city  
17 departments go through the Corporation Counsel, but the  
18 chief has his own attorneys, and he has more than one  
19 attorney or researchers. And the board has always had its  
20 attorney. We have a paralegal that works for us, but we  
21 don't have our own attorney. We had some great attorneys  
22 over the years that once represented this board, but  
23 right now we don't have an attorney of our own. This  
24 attorney who is sitting here today works for Corporation  
25 Counsel. That's where he came from. So for him to come

1 over here and work part-time or whatever...

2 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: He'll be working full-time.

3 COMMISSIONER BURTON: He's not our attorney. He works  
4 for Corporation Counsel. Therefore, we are not going to  
5 be able to get an immediate opinion on anything that we  
6 raise here at this table. Then it also has to be  
7 unbiased.

8 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Okay.

9 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Through the Chair. You know, I'm  
10 going to second Commissioner Burton's motion. I'm for our  
11 own attorney. This is not our own attorney. I have  
12 nothing personal against him, but I mentioned months ago  
13 that we need our own attorney. We need our own. Nothing  
14 that Mayor Duggan sends us... not against Mayor Duggan.  
15 He's great. He's incredible. But we need our own  
16 attorney. So I second.

17 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Okay, motion made...

18 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Mr. Chairman.

19 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yes.

20 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: This is entirely out of  
21 order as it should go under new business.

22 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Okay? We'll wait for new  
23 business.

24 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Point of order. And Mr.  
25 Chairman, we are budgeted...



1 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Point of order.

2 COMMISSIONER BURTON: We are budgeted. We are  
3 budgeted in our...

4 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Point of order.

5 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Let's go bring it up in new  
6 business. Human Resource.

7 DIRECTOR PATILLO: Good afternoon. Through the Chair.  
8 I'll be presenting the HR report for the month of July.  
9 So just keep in mind that those numbers are for July and  
10 not for August. So for departmental staffing, the  
11 department was filled at a 95% rate. We had 3,361  
12 positions filled. That includes the police officers, the  
13 civilians, and the police assistants. For sworn officers,  
14 we were filled at 97%. We had a total of 86 vacancies.  
15 Position filled was 2,586 for the sworn. For civilians,  
16 we were filled at a total of 90%. We had a total of 742  
17 positions filled and 80 vacancies at that time. As you  
18 know, for July, the fiscal year started over. So for  
19 sworn recruiting, we had a total of 495 applicants that  
20 applied, 352 applications that were archived for the  
21 month of July, 28 personnel were hired.

22 Temporary disqualifications were 49, permanent  
23 disqualifications were 66. For MCOLES testing, as the  
24 written and physical agility exam. For written, we had a  
25 total of 140 that was scheduled. 93 appeared. We had 65

1 that passed. That was a 70% passing rate. We had 28 that  
2 failed. That was a 30% failure rate and 47 no shows. For  
3 physical agility, we had 120 scheduled, 69 up here, 39  
4 passed. That was 56, I mean, 57% passing rate, 30 failed,  
5 43% failure rate, and 44 no shows. For academy graduates,  
6 we did have a class that graduated a total of 28, a total  
7 of new hires. For July, we had 30 sworn, 65, 25 civilians  
8 for a total of 55. For Detroit residency information for  
9 July, for Detroit, total sworn 591 civilians, 435, police  
10 assistance 15. For non-Detroiters, 1,996 sworn, 307  
11 civilians, 17 police assistants. For the new hires for  
12 July, of the civilians, there were 10 Detroit residents,  
13 and for sworn it was 6. Our two internship programs  
14 culminated on August 9th. So for our mayoral fellows that  
15 we had in our Grow Detroit Young Talent, both of them  
16 ended on August 9th. We had a graduation for the Detroit  
17 Public Safety Academy for all the students that were  
18 participating over there. And then for all the Mayoral  
19 fellows and all the interns that were participating with  
20 the DPD units, we had a closing ceremony for them and  
21 gave them certificates as well. For attrition, for July,  
22 we had 13 separations for sworn, 13 for civilians, one  
23 police assistant total 27. And then for the leave of  
24 absence, in the following categories: for sworn, we had  
25 17 FMLA continuous, 53 FMLA intermediate, paid parental

1 leave 15, medical leave 1, military 1, restricted 144,  
2 disabled 22, and sick 20.

3       And then for the civilian employees for FMLA  
4 continuous, we had 5, FMLA intermediate 31, paid parental  
5 leave 1, for medical leave, five restricted, 1 disabled,  
6 and 3 that were out on sick leave. For personnel, sworn  
7 suspensions, we had a total of 27. The breakout was 23  
8 police officers, 1 corporal, 2 sergeants, 1 lieutenant.  
9 And then for my police separations, as I said, it was 1.  
10 That included 8 police officers, 1 sergeant, 1  
11 lieutenant, 1 detective, 1 captain, 1 corporal. And then  
12 for the deferred retirement option plan, we had a total  
13 of 507 that is in that plan. For academy students, we're  
14 going to start a class tomorrow. Come tomorrow, we'll  
15 have a total of 147 students at the academy. Five classes  
16 as of tomorrow will be at the academy. We graduated from  
17 a class last Friday, and there were a total of 34  
18 students. We still have former members that are returning  
19 to DPD and members that are still applying to return to  
20 DPD that have left. Pending any questions, that concludes  
21 our presentation.

22       CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Any questions? Yes, sir.  
23 Commissioner Bell.

24       COMMISSIONER BELL: Mr. Chairman, Madam Director.  
25 What is the policy or procedure, HR is doing for virtual

1 interview of candidates, in particular, for one out of  
2 state? Do we have some insight or do you have a policy  
3 that you can speak to HR in terms of how that process is?  
4 Is it available?

5 DIRECTOR PATILLO: Do you mean; do we interview them  
6 if they're virtual?

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: Can they be interviewed by the  
8 state candidate, especially for virtual interview?

9 DIRECTOR PATILLO: Yes, they can.

10 COMMISSIONER BELL: And it is across the board?

11 DIRECTOR PATILLO: I can only speak for DPD. I can't  
12 speak for the other agencies within the city of Detroit.  
13 But for DPD, we have had applicants who have applied out  
14 of state. And depending on what they are applying for if  
15 they have met the eligibility and they are on the list to  
16 be interviewed, yes, we have conducted interviews with  
17 out of state personnel.

18 COMMISSIONER BELL: I posed that question. My  
19 understanding of the candidate for board secretary  
20 requested for an interview, and they didn't get a  
21 response back from this board in reference to that  
22 process. But I guess HR could elaborate. I don't know  
23 what the board decision was; a highly qualified candidate  
24 was not given the opportunity to be interviewed, because  
25 to come for an interview would be like \$500, just to

1 casually, you know, if you're not being considered. But I  
2 think initially, I think it was not unreasonable, but I  
3 just want to share that with you.

4 DIRECTOR PATILLO: So if it was a candidate for the  
5 Board of Police Commissioners, they would've followed up  
6 under the city guidelines and not DPD. But I can tell you  
7 for DPD that if a candidate identifies that they are out  
8 of state we will give them the opportunity to interview.  
9 So, I'll defer to...

10 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Commissioner Hernandez.

11 DIRECTOR PATILLO: Commissioner Hernandez to...

12 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Thank you. Through the  
13 Chair. I would hope at this stage that we would know the  
14 difference between DPD HR and City HR. I'm sure most of  
15 us are aware of that. I will remind this body again, or I  
16 have no idea at this point, how many times the board  
17 secretary position, which we're so glad that Ms. Lydia is  
18 here now, is an appointed position. We could select  
19 someone as a body, and it's within our legal right to  
20 appoint them even without an interview. That's how the  
21 appointment process works here in the city. So, if there  
22 are biases or other rationale as to why these comments  
23 are being made, happy to have a sit down conversation.  
24 But we know better than that.

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: Mr. Chairman?

1 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yes, sir.

2 COMMISSIONER BELL: I want to say I'm well versed in  
3 terms of the director of personnel and HR. We lobbied and  
4 campaigned for that to happen.

5 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I don't lobby.

6 COMMISSIONER BELL: On my watch, I just want you to  
7 know that.

8 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Speak to the Chair. Thank you.

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: I'm speaking to the Chair.

10 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Okay. Alright. Thank you.

11 Alright. Any other questions?

12 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair?

13 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yes.

14 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I just want to just raise this  
15 point

16 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Is it related to the...

17 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Just really quickly. You know,

18 Commissioner Bell is a senior statesman on this board.

19 And I'd like it if everyone showed him respect in the

20 class at this time, because he's absolutely right about a

21 number of things. There are times that we disagree, but

22 he's actually right this time around. And as a senior

23 statesman,

24 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Is this your main...

25 COMMISSIONER BURTON: We should hear what he has to

1 say because it's very valid.

2 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Just heard what he had to say. He  
3 asked his questions and they got answered. And this has  
4 to be germane to the...

5 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.

6 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Excuse me.

7 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Most of you all are new  
8 commissioners, but he's a senior statesman.

9 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Excuse me.

10 COMMISSIONER BURTON: So, let's have some respect for  
11 him.

12 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Oh, I respect him highly. And I  
13 think everybody on this board come highly, respects  
14 people, respects his humanity and his position. So  
15 anything else germane to the HR report?

16 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chair?

17 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yes.

18 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I  
19 guess for the benefit of the public, I know you always  
20 want to know what's happening with the police department  
21 in terms of residency. We have roughly 2000 officers,  
22 really more than that, almost 2,700. 2000 of those are  
23 non-residents, 591 are residents. Now, this civilian  
24 employee situation is really in reverse. The majority of  
25 the civilian employees, roughly a thousand, about 500 of

1 those are in fact city residents. But the 307 are not.  
2 But there are some vacancies there, obviously. But I  
3 wanted you to know that, in terms of this report, Detroit  
4 Residency Information, total sworn 591 live in Detroit,  
5 1,996 live outside of Detroit. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

6 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: All right. Thank you. Thank you.  
7 Let's go to... we did a secretary report already? Mr.  
8 Brown, did you... wait? No, we'll do that later. And so  
9 let's go to unfinished business. Commissioner Smith.

10 COMMISSIONER SMITH: Thank you. Through the Chair.  
11 This is the memorandum to the Board of Police  
12 Commissioners from Commissioner Darryl Woods,  
13 Chairperson, Personnel and Training committee. Today's  
14 date, August 29th.

15 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Special Personnel and Training  
16 committee.

17 COMMISSIONER SMITH: There is not any special in  
18 front of it.

19 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: It was right there. Okay. I don't  
20 want to... Alright, go ahead.

21 COMMISSIONER SMITH: Dear colleagues, on behalf of  
22 the Board of Police Commissioners Special Personnel and  
23 Training Committee, please see the key updates from the  
24 committee meeting held on August 22nd, 2024. Board  
25 attendees, Commissioner Darrell Woods, Commissioner



1 Tamara Smith. Executive Manager policy position. On May  
2 24th, 2024, the Special Training and Personnel Committee  
3 provided the full board Mr. Dorian Tyus as the Executive  
4 Manager of policy. After a couple of weeks, he declined  
5 the position. After a thorough review of responses and  
6 evaluation of qualifications, the Special Personnel and  
7 Training Committee made the decision to advance Felicia  
8 Tyson. This recommendation will be presented to the full  
9 board for consideration. Thank you.

10 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yeah. Are there any objections?  
11 There being no objection.

12 Yes.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: I don't have an objection, but I  
14 don't want to... I hate to really speak, but I think I  
15 cannot be silenced in some matters on this board.  
16 Commissioner Burton asked a question about the Special  
17 Training Committee, and I would caution, I would ask the  
18 Madam Secretary and I would get legal counsel to review  
19 the IG report. You are going down the path of the Chair  
20 and the Vice Chair acting as a committee without posting  
21 on two dates you had on the 5th, and on the 22nd. I think  
22 that would be a violation of the Open Meeting Act, in  
23 terms of how we operate. We've been cited before. So you  
24 need to review that process in terms of how we are cited,  
25 and I know personally because I was the Chair. So I want

1 to give you some background. Devos (Phonetic) was Vice  
2 Chair at that time. It's something that you're meeting  
3 without the authority of the board, more or less. It was  
4 self-appointed that way. So I just want to caution you to  
5 review that process. I would ask the board secretary and  
6 Mr. Goss to really look at this particular special  
7 committee that's been formed.

8 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: No, it hasn't been formed. This  
9 is something that has been formed to be able to deal with  
10 these positions. Commissioner Bernard was on it, myself  
11 as well as Carter was on there. And it was dealing with  
12 this particular position. And it was a public meeting. It  
13 was put out there online and it was open to the public  
14 and it was done according to the rules, you know. And so  
15 the fact of the matter is that this is not a new  
16 committee. This is something that has been ongoing to  
17 deal with all of the back log in terms of helping the  
18 Personnel and Training Committee and helping our former  
19 chair, and this particular board to get all those  
20 positions filled whether it comes from investigators, the  
21 policy manager, and there were a couple of other  
22 positions that the chair put under our watch to be able  
23 to get done and they got done. And we are just finishing  
24 the job.

25 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: But the problem that

1 Commissioner Bell has raised, if I may, Mr. Chair, is  
2 that, you just said the committee consists of four  
3 people, there were only two people present, so there's no  
4 quorum.

5 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yeah. It was a quorum.

6 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Carter you said, me and the  
7 two of you.

8 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Two is a quorum. And you were...

9 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Not for four. That's only 50%.

10 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: No. You were out of town.

11 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Right, I was.

12 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yeah. You were out of town. So  
13 you got the invite there and you were out of town. You  
14 couldn't make it. And Ms. Carter she had not been to a  
15 meeting in a very long time. You know, she has not been  
16 able to come to meetings, you know in months, so we move  
17 forward.

18 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: And still not a quorum.

19 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: It's a quorum.

20 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Okay.

21 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Anything further?

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: I would hope that you take what I  
23 said for that type of advice to check with the board  
24 secretary, Mr. Goss. I think in one instance that we  
25 were...

1 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: With the attorney?

2 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, attorney. We were cited in  
3 terms of Corporation Counsel, legal body for this body.  
4 Regardless of what transaction takes place with the legal  
5 center, it still can be reviewed and reversed or stand  
6 affirmed by the Corporation Counsel. Past chair, I mean,  
7 Mr. Garcia made it clear in writing in terms of appearing  
8 for this board and taking certain action. Just want to  
9 share that with you. I'll leave it at that.

10 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Okay. Anything from the board? We  
11 asked our Personnel and Training HR expert

12 COMMISSIONER PRESSLEY: Well, I mean, I'll speak in  
13 that regard because I formed this Special Personnel and  
14 Training Committee meeting as the former chair while I  
15 was the Chair. And again, it constituted those who might  
16 be able to serve as we were trying to fulfill all of the  
17 vacant positions that we had. As you very well know,  
18 Commissioner Bell, and I'm sure all the commissioners  
19 know, it is in the prerogative of the chair to then  
20 select their own committees and committee assignments.  
21 And so I believe there was an email that was provided I  
22 guess a few weeks ago, several weeks ago now where  
23 Commissioner Woods, Chair Woods, excuse me, shared his  
24 committee assignments. And so as he did state, who was  
25 initially on the committee, and you're right when you

1 counted those out, Commissioner Bernard, but again, it is  
2 his prerogative as Chair to determine who is on that  
3 committee. And so at that point the members on that  
4 committee then amount to a quorum. But I mean, I  
5 obviously, again, a special committee was dictated for  
6 special terms. And so I do think that there is some value  
7 to your point, Commissioner Bell in saying whether or not  
8 the continuation of the Special Personnel and Training  
9 Committee is necessary, noting that all of the positions  
10 that prompted its creation have now been filled.

11 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yeah. And the only one would be  
12 this last one. And I'm happy to defer it back to the  
13 Personnel and Training. You know, I'm happy to do that.  
14 Excuse me.

15 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I'm okay with your  
16 recommendation, I guess.

17 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yeah. You know, whatever the  
18 pleasure of the board.

19 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Through the Chair?

20 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yes.

21 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: We have a recommendation on  
22 the board, or on the table.

23 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yeah. Are there any objections?  
24 There being no objections, it is...

25 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHÉ: I abstain, Mr. Chair.

1 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Okay. All right.

2 COMMISSIONER BELL: I too.

3 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Okay.

4 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Can we get a roll call,  
5 please?

6 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Get a roll call vote. And if  
7 there is anything legal in the situation, we will have  
8 the attorney advise us of any legal implication, but I  
9 don't see any.

10 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chairman, I think our  
11 parliamentarian had previously advised us that a  
12 committee report does not require a motion or a second.  
13 It is accepted.

14 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yeah, absolutely. Thank you.

15 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you.

16 COMMISSIONER PRESSLEY: Point of order, it's not  
17 necessarily correct. If there is an action item that's  
18 coming out of the committee a second is not needed, but  
19 it does require a vote of the board. And so we are asking  
20 for a roll call.

21 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Roll call.

22 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: To approve this young lady.  
23 That's what we're doing?

24 COMMISSIONER PRESSLEY: The recommendation presented  
25 to the full board for consideration. And again, legally

1 speaking, I think that that covers us, because at the end  
2 of the day, the hiring of this individual will be not by  
3 the committee, but as a result of the vote of this board.  
4 So it gives all of our fellow commissions the opportunity  
5 to say yay or nay on whether or not they believe this  
6 person should be hired

7 COMMISSIONER SMITH: Through the Chair.

8 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yes.

9 COMMISSIONER SMITH: Yes. Just on behalf of being on  
10 the committee, when the committee was formed by you.

11 COMMISSIONER PRESSLEY: Yes.

12 COMMISSIONER SMITH: There was no funny business  
13 going on or any type of favoritism. We all interviewed  
14 these people. I sat for six hours interviewing several  
15 people for several positions, and then when it came to  
16 here, so when you have difficulty getting people to show  
17 up, even for a board meeting, as well as special  
18 committee meetings, I think that he goes by whoever he  
19 can get to get a commissioner to come in so that we can  
20 interview, and to vote. So I don't want you to think that  
21 there's been any deception, or anything that's done  
22 sneaky behind any of your backs.

23 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: I don't think the commissioner  
24 implied that; he was just talking about process, and he  
25 was talking about, if I'm correct, some things have been

1 done in the past and, as Commissioner Pressley says that  
2 this roll call vote will settle it at all because it'll  
3 be the will of the board and not the committee.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: I just want to say one more  
5 thing.

6 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yes, sir.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: The report indicated that the  
8 decision had already been made in a committee meeting  
9 versus coming to the board. That was the gray area.

10 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: No, it was the recommendation.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: I'll just give you the idea.

12 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Okay. Yes, sir.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: That they decided; they report  
14 prior to the board. You already made up your mind what  
15 you were going to do? So that was improper. But I asked  
16 once again, you need to pursue it and...

17 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Okay. Yes, ma'am.

18 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: Mr. Chair, I want to  
19 explain why I abstain, because I'm not clear on whether  
20 you needed to have a quorum, and I don't believe two is a  
21 quorum. I just had a board meeting at my job, and we have  
22 an attorney on the board, and we had 6 out of 12, and he  
23 said that was not a quorum. So we had to wait for a  
24 seventh person. So that's why I'm voting...

25 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: It's a quorum of four. So it's



1 four on the committee. There were four people on the  
2 committee, the quorum. So it was two out of the four,  
3 which has been the process, even in her committee.

4 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: So I'm abstaining for that.  
5 I'm just explaining why I'm abstaining. I'm not  
6 questioning your recommendation or anything, I'm just...

7 COMMISSIONER PRESSLEY: Present.

8 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yeah. But we are going to do a  
9 roll call vote, and it's going to take it all the way  
10 from... it's going to free the Special Personnel Committee  
11 to vote on this recommendation. Roll call vote.

12 COMMISSIONER SMITH: Is the parliamentarian online?

13 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Roll call vote.

14 MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Woods - Yes.

15 MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Smith - Yes.

16 MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Bernard - I just don't  
17 know this young woman. Will you like her? I'll say Yes.

18 MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Banks - What is the motion  
19 for, can you repeat that?

20 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: For the policy manager.

21 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Dorian Tyus

22 COMMISSIONER BANKS: No. Oh, right down here, the  
23 guy?

24 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: No, no.

25 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: The lady.

1 COMMISSIONER BANKS: This is Dorian, right?

2 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: No, no, no. This is for someone  
3 he interviewed.

4 COMMISSIONER PRESSLEY: Alicia Tyson

5 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Alicia Tyson.

6 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Oh. Okay. Yeah.

7 COMMISSIONER SMITH: And we were talking to them.

8 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Yeah, I remember. Okay. Yeah,  
9 that's fine. Yes.

10 MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Bell - Abstain.

11 MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Carter. Oh, I'm sorry.

12 MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Hernandez - Yes.

13 MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Dewaelsche - Abstain.

14 MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Pressley - Yes.

15 MS. GARNIER: Motion passes.

16 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Okay. Please direct a memo to HR  
17 regarding this matter. Alright. Any other, I think it's  
18 new business now, or, let me see where we are at. I'm  
19 finished. Any new business? There being no new business.  
20 What is... oh new business is that there's no motion, no  
21 anything. So, Mr. Dante Goss is our interim attorney. And  
22 he's a very skilled person, a person who will be in our  
23 office and we have 1000% access to, and so I'll say, get  
24 acquainted with him, get his number. He will help us  
25 through this process. And he would start on Tuesday and

1 his office again, will be here in the Board of Police  
2 Commissioners.

3 COMMISSIONER BANKS: The gentleman right here?

4 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yes. Yes, sir.

5 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Thank you. I don't know if  
6 there's an announcement or new business, but I'd like to  
7 formally welcome our board secretary to join these  
8 meetings. We know, as a body and the public as well, this  
9 has been a very long and tedious process, and yet we  
10 obviously feel very confident in your abilities, and  
11 we're just excited for you to be here.

12 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Absolutely. Commissioner Bernard  
13 and then Commissioner Dewaelsche.

14 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Attorney Goss, I've known you  
15 for a long time. You're a former board secretary for the  
16 Board of Police Commissioners, isn't that correct?

17 ATTORNEY GOSS: Yes, ma'am, I am.

18 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: So you've served in the  
19 executive, I'm sorry. No. You've served in the executive  
20 role as our board secretary previously. And how long have  
21 you been now with the Corporation Counsel's office?

22 ATTORNEY GOSS: Three years.

23 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Two years. Well, welcome  
24 aboard, but I just want to caution you about what I can  
25 think Commissioner Burton was talking about, which is

1 perceived and or actual conflicts of interest. Our  
2 interests are not always in accord with the will of the  
3 Corporation Counsel. So your job, as you know, is to.. we  
4 are your client, the only client that you have. And if  
5 there's a problem for you in terms of representing our  
6 interests, then obviously you'd have to recuse yourself.  
7 Do you agree?

8 ATTORNEY GOSS: Yes, ma'am.

9 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you.

10 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yep. Commissioner Dewaelsche.

11 COMMISSIONER DEWAEELSCHÉ: Oh, thank you, Mr. Chair. I  
12 just wanted to thank Robert Brown for the period that he  
13 was interim, for keeping everything in order. I've only  
14 been back for a short time, but during the time that I've  
15 been here, he's been extremely helpful to me. So thank  
16 you, Robert.

17 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Yeah. You stole my words.  
18 Absolutely. Thank you. Thank you, thank you. You know,  
19 from the bottom of our hearts, and thank you for the  
20 great guidance and leadership that you have brought, and  
21 the dignity you bring to this space as well. And so,  
22 having said that, what is the pleasure of this board?

23 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Move to dismiss, I mean,  
24 adjourn.

25 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Support.

1 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Motion made by Commissioner  
2 Bernard, and second by Commissioner Hernandez to adjourn.  
3 All in favor say aye.

4 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

5 CHAIRPERSON WOODS: Anyone oppose? The motion is  
6 carried.

7 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: And it's daylight.

8

9

10 (Meeting Adjourned at 4:45pm)

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



---

**Exhibits**

---

**Worksheet BOPC 8\_29\_24**

---

**\$**

---

**\$35** 14:22,24  
**\$400** 31:14  
**\$500** 60:25  
**\$91,000** 34:15 35:1

---

**1**

---

**1** 10:22 59:1,5,8,9,10,11  
**1,009** 9:19  
**1,996** 58:10 64:5  
**1-800-SPEAKUP** 9:5,16  
**10** 58:12  
**10,000** 34:22,23  
**1000%** 74:23  
**1000th** 9:18  
**11** 2:7  
**11%** 7:24  
**114** 8:1  
**12** 16:7 17:23 72:22  
**120** 58:3  
**12th** 2:12  
**13** 58:22  
**14** 10:17  
**14-year-old** 19:24  
**140** 57:25  
**141** 7:18  
**144** 59:1  
**147** 59:15  
**15** 58:10 59:1  
**16-** 19:23

**16-year-old** 19:25  
**162** 8:17  
**17** 58:11,25  
**18** 18:23  
**180** 7:19  
**1963** 54:7  
**1973** 54:8  
**1974** 54:11  
**1:30** 31:8

---

**2**

---

**2** 5:16 34:22 59:8  
**2,586** 57:15  
**2,700** 63:22  
**20** 59:2  
**20,000** 34:23 52:20  
**20-11112** 47:14  
**2000** 63:21,22  
**2024** 2:1 6:8,18 64:24 65:2  
**21** 10:4 31:15 32:6 53:23  
**22** 6:18 59:2  
**22%** 7:18  
**223** 8:16  
**2260** 2:14  
**22nd** 32:19 64:24 65:21  
**23** 59:7  
**24%** 7:20,22  
**24th** 37:13 65:2  
**25** 58:7  
**25,000** 52:20  
**25th** 8:19  
**26th** 2:19  
**27** 10:4 58:23 59:7  
**27th** 9:9

**28** 57:21 58:1,6  
**29** 6:8  
**290** 8:14  
**29th** 2:1 64:14  
**2:18** 8:20

---

**3**

---

**3** 59:6  
**3,361** 57:11  
**30** 52:18,23 58:4,7  
**30%** 58:2  
**307** 58:10 64:1  
**31** 59:4  
**333** 8:14  
**34** 59:17  
**34%** 8:1  
**352** 57:20  
**36th** 22:3  
**39** 58:3  
**3:00** 2:1,10

---

**4**

---

**4** 5:20  
**43%** 58:5  
**435** 58:9  
**438** 7:20  
**44** 58:5  
**45** 31:15,21,24 32:6 53:4  
**46** 18:22  
**47** 58:2  
**48** 16:10  
**48217** 2:14  
**49** 57:22  
**495** 57:19

4:45pm 77:10

780.766-780.834 41:5

30:24 36:13 37:7 38:16 44:22,  
23 48:11,13,15,17 49:18 50:3

---

5

---

---

8

---

5 5:22 59:4

8 59:10

5,100 9:8

8,000 34:9

50 54:11

8-year-old 19:9,22 20:6

50% 13:2 67:9

80 57:17

500 63:25

86 57:14

507 59:13

---

9

---

51 35:1

9 2:7

53 58:25

90% 57:16

55 58:8

91,000 35:2

56 58:4

93 57:25

57% 58:4

95% 57:11

576 7:21

964 7:23

591 58:9 63:23 64:4

97% 57:14

5K 14:20

9th 58:14,16

5th 2:10 65:21

---

6

---

---

A

---

6 42:3 58:13 72:22

abandoned 34:11 36:14,16,  
19,20 37:5 51:7,8

6-year-old 19:8,22 20:6

abdomen 48:2

65 57:25 58:7

abilities 75:10

66 57:23

aboard 3:22 75:24

69 58:3

absence 58:24

6:30 2:12

absolutely 3:11,23 12:25  
19:20 22:2 30:14 46:15 48:16  
62:20 70:14 75:12 76:18

---

7

---

abstain 69:25 72:19 74:10,13

7 18:23

abstaining 73:4,5

7,100 8:24

AC 7:14 10:21 11:7,19 12:21  
17:25 18:12,20 19:3,7,13,15,  
17,20 20:9,16 21:16,22,24  
22:5,10,15 23:1,3,13,25 24:7,  
11,19,23 25:7,13 26:6,12  
27:10,14,24 28:9,24 29:9

70% 58:1

733 7:23

742 57:16

75 8:1

academy 10:24 11:3 58:5,17  
59:13,15,16

accept 41:3

acceptable 33:7 34:4

accepted 70:13

access 74:23

accomplish 47:17

accord 76:2

accountable 22:23 33:22,24  
40:22

accounts 45:7

Accusations 35:15

acknowledge 39:14 41:12

acquainted 74:24

Act 65:22

acting 7:4 65:20

action 2:8 15:10 23:22 39:22  
68:8 70:17

active 26:7

activist 44:14

activities 37:22

actual 16:25 76:1

add 54:5

add-on 10:22

added 12:24

addiction 45:9

additional 43:16

address 17:14 37:11,18

addressed 49:10

adhering 54:17

adjourn 76:24 77:2

Adjourned 77:10

advance 65:7



**advice** 67:23  
**advise** 70:8  
**advised** 70:11  
**Affairs** 32:23,24  
**affirmed** 68:6  
**African** 54:8  
**afternoon** 2:8 7:1,12,13 31:4,5  
37:8 38:5 48:23,25 50:22 57:7  
**age** 18:23 53:6  
**agencies** 60:12  
**agency** 31:13  
**agenda** 6:8 34:8  
**agility** 57:24 58:3  
**agree** 39:17 51:1 76:7  
**agreed** 37:11  
**agreement** 46:25  
**ahead** 2:16 18:18 28:13 64:20  
**Ainsley** 7:5  
**Alicia** 74:4,5  
**aligned** 13:16  
**allegations** 23:4,14  
**allowed** 51:3,4  
**Alright** 4:6 5:5 28:2,22 29:7  
30:6 38:12,20,23 48:18 62:10,  
11 64:20 74:17  
**amazing** 21:6 30:14  
**Amen** 5:4,5  
**American** 54:8  
**amount** 18:21 69:4  
**ample** 36:18  
**and...** 72:16  
**Anecdotally** 19:3  
**announce** 41:25  
**announcement** 28:14 75:6  
**announcements** 2:9 51:18

**answering** 44:16  
**answers** 45:13 46:1,3  
**anti-eviction** 42:8 43:9  
**anybody's** 33:1  
**apologies** 25:3 35:16 41:3  
**apologize** 5:17  
**appeared** 57:25  
**appearing** 68:7  
**applause** 35:11  
**apples** 40:3  
**applicants** 57:19 60:13  
**application** 15:9  
**applications** 57:20  
**applied** 57:20 60:13  
**applies** 31:25  
**apply** 11:16  
**applying** 59:19 60:14  
**appoint** 61:20  
**appointed** 61:18  
**appointee** 52:3  
**appointment** 61:21  
**Appoline** 51:8  
**appreciated** 38:15  
**appropriately** 40:17  
**approval** 6:8,17  
**approve** 70:22  
**approved** 48:8  
**archived** 57:20  
**area** 37:10 72:9  
**areas** 52:19  
**arm** 47:15  
**armed** 26:24 42:6 44:10  
**arraignment** 16:9 17:22  
**arrest** 15:2,3,9,10,14,23,24

16:2,3,6,9,10  
**arrested** 15:25 16:14  
**arrestee** 16:8  
**arrests** 15:6,7,8 16:5 17:21  
18:10 50:25  
**arrest...** 15:22  
**arrival** 8:23  
**Artemisia** 7:3  
**article** 11:25 34:7,8  
**ASL** 7:6  
**aspect** 17:21  
**asset** 41:14  
**assignment** 29:11  
**assignments** 68:20,24  
**assist** 3:6 27:18 55:10  
**assistance** 58:10  
**assistant** 11:24 20:13 25:17  
26:4,20,21 28:4 30:1 36:11  
38:25 44:15 47:8 55:8 58:23  
**assistants** 57:13 58:11  
**assume** 12:1  
**attacks** 39:6  
**attempt** 21:4  
**attended** 37:13  
**attendees** 64:25  
**attention** 13:13  
**attorney** 5:15 7:9 54:6,12,13,  
15,21,22,24 55:1,7,16,19,20,  
21,23,24 56:3,11,13,16 68:1,2  
70:8 72:22 74:21 75:14,17,22  
76:8  
**attorneys** 54:16,19 55:18,21  
**attrition** 58:21  
**Audio** 7:7  
**August** 2:1 6:8,18 8:19 9:8  
32:19 37:12 57:10 58:14,16  
64:14,24

**authority** 46:22 51:15 66:3  
**aware** 12:1 14:9 51:15 61:15  
**aye** 6:14,15,21,22 29:21,22  
30:20,21 77:3,4  
**eyes** 30:22  
**a...** 25:9 52:17

---

**B**

---

**back** 5:6 8:24 13:1 21:7 24:24  
26:22 27:8 37:3 50:8 53:21  
60:21 66:17 69:12 76:14  
**background** 2:20 66:1  
**backs** 35:2 71:22  
**backyard** 8:8 37:2,21  
**backyards** 37:2  
**bad** 5:23 40:3  
**bailiff** 25:18,22,25 26:3,24  
27:3 28:5 44:11  
**bailiffs** 42:17  
**ball** 36:1  
**Banks** 5:18 6:12,13,21 18:15,  
16,18 20:10,11,13,24 25:16  
26:3,10,13,16 27:7 28:3 29:25  
30:1,5 56:9,22 73:18,22 74:1,  
6,8 75:3  
**bar** 9:1  
**Barbara** 22:19  
**barbecue** 8:8  
**Barber** 7:3  
**Barnard** 54:18  
**based** 30:19 43:19 44:4  
**basis** 54:25  
**Beatty** 7:6  
**bed** 44:7  
**bedroom** 44:9  
**began** 25:19

**behalf** 5:22 22:16 25:12 64:21  
71:9  
**Bell** 3:13 5:19 11:23,24 59:23,  
24 60:7,10,18 61:25 62:2,6,9,  
18 65:13 67:1,22 68:2,18 69:7  
70:2 72:4,7,11,13 74:10  
**benefit** 9:20 63:19  
**Bernard** 5:15,16 6:9,11,19,20  
14:7,8 15:19 16:12,17,24  
17:4,9,12,16 18:1,10,13 19:6,  
14,19 26:1,18,21 27:13 29:17,  
20 32:9,15,19 38:13,19 40:13  
46:4,11 48:19 52:7,10 53:24  
63:16,18 66:10,25 67:6,9,11,  
18,20 69:1,15 70:10,15,22  
73:16,21,25 75:12,14,18,23  
76:9,23 77:2,7  
**biased** 36:5  
**biases** 61:22  
**big** 37:13  
**billboards** 34:14  
**binder** 15:22  
**bit** 10:8 51:23  
**blank** 46:20  
**bleeding** 52:23  
**block** 8:4,11,25 9:8 21:7 51:8  
**Bloomfield** 39:23 40:1  
**Blossom** 7:2  
**Blount** 4:11 5:9 31:3,4,6 45:4  
**board** 2:2,7,16 3:1,2,7,11,14,  
16,18,21,25 7:12 13:8 14:5  
25:6,8 29:16 31:4 34:1 37:9  
38:25 46:2,8 48:7 49:17  
51:23,25 52:2,11,25 53:2  
54:6,10,13,14,16,19,20 55:1,  
5,10,12,14,19,22 60:10,19,21,  
23 61:5,16 62:18 63:13 64:11,  
22,24 65:3,9,15 66:3,5,19  
67:23 68:8,10 69:18,22 70:19,  
25 71:3,17 72:3,9,14,21,22  
75:1,7,15,16,20 76:22  
**board's** 54:17

**boards** 34:2  
**board's** 46:17  
**boasting** 8:2  
**boats** 36:20 37:1  
**body** 12:3 54:23 55:15 61:15,  
19 68:3 75:8  
**boggles** 45:8  
**Boots** 49:13  
**BOPC** 6:24 50:25  
**bottom** 76:19  
**Boundaries** 14:15  
**boundary** 48:6  
**boyfriend** 9:9,10,11  
**Brady** 23:18 24:1  
**bragging** 8:2  
**brand** 3:19  
**breakout** 59:7  
**bribed** 34:25 35:2  
**briefly** 52:8  
**bring** 2:17 13:13 55:4 57:5  
76:21  
**bringing** 22:17  
**broadcast** 31:9  
**Brotherhood** 14:15  
**brought** 15:12 16:20 17:10  
23:14,24 25:11 76:20  
**Brown** 7:2 43:4,8 64:8 76:12  
**budget** 10:22  
**budgeted** 10:17 57:2,3  
**budgeted...** 56:25  
**build** 40:19  
**building** 41:18 42:25  
**Buller** 50:12  
**bullet** 20:3 47:13  
**burn** 47:18,23

**burns** 47:25 48:2  
**Burton** 5:6,21 22:11,13,16  
23:2,9,16 24:6,8,13,22,25  
25:10 45:17 46:11 51:2 54:3,5  
55:11 56:3,24 57:2 62:12,14,  
17,25 63:5,7,10 65:16 75:25  
**Burton's** 56:10  
**bus** 33:9,13  
**business** 9:18 16:20 17:11  
55:4 56:21,23 57:6 64:9 71:12  
74:18,19,20 75:6  
**busy** 3:4 12:11  
**Butler** 20:15 21:20 31:25 32:4  
35:6 37:8 42:4 43:23  
**Butler's** 49:11

---

**C**

---

**CADOTTE** 4:13,15  
**cake** 10:3  
**call** 3:5 5:12 9:16 15:1 21:9  
36:1,5,6 39:7 49:2,4,5,6 70:4,  
6,20,21 72:2 73:9,11,13  
**called** 2:2 14:14 25:18 49:13,  
20 51:13  
**calling** 37:20 40:20  
**calls** 8:12,13,17  
**camera** 31:20,21 43:11  
**cameras** 39:17 42:25  
**campaigned** 62:4  
**campers** 36:20 37:1  
**campus** 37:13  
**candidate** 29:14 60:8,19,23  
61:4,7  
**candidates** 60:1  
**candy** 37:24  
**capacity** 12:25  
**captain** 13:10 14:19 21:6,14  
44:5 59:11

**car** 33:14,15 36:18  
**care** 34:25  
**carjacking** 9:21  
**Carjackings** 7:25  
**carried** 6:17 77:6  
**cars** 34:8 37:3  
**Carter** 5:24 66:11 67:6,14  
74:11  
**case** 9:15 12:18 20:22 28:2  
47:14  
**cases** 12:1,3,9,13 13:2,3,4  
30:15  
**casually** 61:1  
**categories** 8:3 58:24  
**Catholic** 31:7  
**caution** 65:17 66:4 75:24  
**CCW** 26:25 27:5  
**Cedric** 5:18  
**celebrated** 9:18  
**celebrating** 54:11  
**center** 2:13 68:5  
**ceremony** 58:20  
**certificates** 58:21  
**chair** 2:6 3:24 5:12 6:6 10:14,  
21 11:22 12:21 18:4,17,19  
19:3 20:11,16 21:1,3,16 22:11  
23:1,13,25 24:19,21 25:17  
26:7 27:10 28:4,9 34:6 36:13  
38:16 40:12 41:23 46:7 52:17  
54:3 55:11 56:9 57:7 61:13  
62:8,9,12 63:5,16 64:10  
65:19,20,25 66:2,19,22 67:1  
68:6,14,15,19,23 69:2,19,25  
71:7 72:18 76:11  
**chairman** 3:13 15:19 16:13,24  
32:9 38:13,24 48:6 52:7  
56:18,25 59:24 61:25 63:18  
64:5 70:10  
**Chairperson** 2:1,15 3:11,23  
4:6,12,14 5:5,10 6:7,10,13,16,

20,23 7:10,13 10:10 11:23  
13:9 15:17 16:11,15,18 17:2,  
6,10,14 18:14,18 19:16,18  
20:10,12,25 21:2,19,23 22:2,  
6,12 25:15 26:14,17,20 27:21,  
25 28:12 29:7,15,19,23 30:4,  
6,22,25 31:5 32:8,13,17,20  
34:5 35:4,8 36:9 37:6 38:12,  
20,23 40:9,11 41:22 42:1  
43:2,7 44:21,25 46:14 47:6  
48:11,14,16,18,24 49:4,5  
50:19,21,23 52:5,9 53:19  
54:2,4,24 56:2,8,17,19 57:5  
59:22 61:10 62:1,8,10,13,16,  
24 63:2,6,9,12,17 64:6,13,15,  
19 65:10 66:8 67:5,8,10,12,  
19,21 68:1,10 69:11,17,20,23  
70:1,3,6,14,21 71:8,23 72:6,  
10,12,17,25 73:8,13,20,24  
74:2,5,16 75:4,12 76:10,17  
77:1,5  
**challenge** 2:24  
**challenges** 36:2 39:5  
**Chambers** 39:9 41:6  
**changed** 39:23  
**Chaplain** 4:12,13,15  
**charges** 28:5,7  
**Charles** 7:8 39:22  
**Charnita** 31:3  
**charter** 46:16,20 47:1  
**check** 22:7 48:5 67:23  
**Chicago** 52:19,21  
**chief** 6:24 7:11 11:24 12:10,24  
13:14,19 14:18 16:15,20 17:7,  
21 18:6 20:13 21:4,15,20  
22:2,8,13 24:25 25:17 26:5,  
18,20,21 28:4,15 29:4 30:1  
32:11 36:11 38:6,25 39:11,12  
44:15 47:9 52:11 55:18  
**children** 14:12,16 18:25 49:14  
**chime** 2:23  
**choices** 53:8

**Chris** 43:4 45:1  
**Church** 31:7  
**CIT** 11:9  
**cited** 65:23,24 68:2  
**citizen** 43:14 53:11  
**citizens** 2:25 4:18,21 8:12  
13:13 14:1 34:19 35:3 40:24  
49:9  
**city** 2:25 3:9 4:18 9:21 14:2  
29:13 32:3 34:22 36:8,17,21,  
25 38:8 45:10 46:16 49:15  
51:1 52:19 53:1 54:9 55:9,16  
60:12 61:6,14,21 64:1  
**city's** 45:2  
**civil** 34:3  
**civilian** 59:3 63:23,25  
**civilians** 57:13,15 58:7,9,11,  
12,22  
**claim** 32:2  
**claimed** 20:1  
**clarify** 45:6  
**class** 10:24 58:6 59:14,17  
62:20  
**classes** 10:24 59:15  
**clear** 44:11 46:15,20 68:7  
72:19  
**client** 76:4  
**climbing** 20:1 37:4  
**clippings** 43:20  
**clock** 12:12  
**close** 13:1  
**closely** 47:8,9 49:18  
**closing** 58:20  
**closure** 12:15  
**coalition** 50:16  
**coffee** 10:3  
**cold** 12:1,3,9 13:4

**Cole** 50:7  
**Coleman** 47:15 52:13 54:9  
**colleague** 36:10  
**colleagues** 36:4 64:21  
**color** 39:25 40:23  
**command** 11:13  
**commander** 13:10 39:9 41:5,  
6,7  
**commendations** 21:5,14  
**comment** 4:7 5:6 16:19 17:7,  
12,20 39:1 52:7  
**commented** 46:10  
**commenter** 45:3 46:10,15  
47:4 48:20  
**comments** 3:12 12:9 14:6  
15:18 45:3 61:22  
**commission** 4:19,24 45:14,23  
**commissioner** 3:13,24 5:6,19,  
21,24 6:1,2,4,5,9,10,12,13,19,  
20,21 10:11,12,13,14 11:4,15,  
21,23,24 14:6,8 15:19 16:12,  
17,24 17:4,9,12,16 18:1,10,  
13,14,15,16,19 19:6,11,14,19  
20:8,10,11,13,24 21:1,2,3,18  
22:11,13,16 23:2,9,16 24:6,8,  
13,22,25 25:10,16 26:1,3,10,  
13,16,18,21 27:7,13 28:3  
29:17,18,19,20,25 30:1,5,18  
32:9,15,19 38:13,19 40:13  
45:17 46:1,2,4 48:19,21 49:6  
50:20 51:1 52:7,10 53:19,24  
54:3,5,18 55:7,11 56:3,9,10,  
18,20,22,24 57:1,2,4 59:23,24  
60:7,10,18 61:10,11,12,25  
62:2,5,6,9,12,14,17,18,25  
63:5,7,10,16,18 64:9,10,12,  
17,21,25 65:13,16 66:10,25  
67:1,6,9,11,18,20,22 68:2,12,  
18,23 69:1,7,15,19,21,25  
70:2,4,10,15,16,22,24 71:7,9,  
11,12,19,23 72:1,4,7,11,13,18  
73:4,7,12,14,15,16,18,21,22,  
25 74:1,4,6,7,8,10,11,12,13,  
14 75:3,5,12,13,14,18,23,25

76:9,10,11,23,25 77:1,2,7  
**commissioner's** 45:24 54:21  
**commissioners** 2:2,23 4:8  
5:11 6:15,22 29:22 30:21 37:9  
46:11 55:2,14 61:5 63:8  
64:12,22 68:18 75:2,16 77:4  
**Commissioner...** 26:16  
**commissions** 54:10 71:4  
**committed** 22:19,21 23:11  
**committee** 46:4 53:22 64:13,  
16,23,24 65:2,7,17,20 66:7,  
16,18 67:2 68:14,20,24,25  
69:3,4,5,9 70:12,18 71:3,10,  
18 72:3,8 73:1,2,3,10  
**committees** 68:20  
**communicate** 13:25  
**communication** 13:9,12,18,24  
14:3  
**communications** 31:1  
**communities** 35:20 40:6  
51:20  
**community** 2:11 3:4 14:5,19  
15:2,19 17:4 18:20,25 19:10  
22:7 24:14 25:10 30:10 35:17  
36:7 39:15,19 40:20,24 41:2,  
8,17 45:11,18,23 46:5 47:3  
51:21 53:5,7,13,15 54:17  
**community's** 9:4 45:19  
**companies** 34:22  
**compared** 40:6  
**complaining** 12:3  
**complaints** 23:4 37:5 49:8,15  
50:18  
**completed** 16:7 17:23 28:22  
**Compstat** 36:23  
**concern** 45:6,23,24  
**concerned** 19:1 33:12  
**concerns** 22:17 25:11 45:18,  
20

concludes 59:20  
conclusion 5:1  
conduct 40:15  
conducted 4:24 60:16  
conducting 40:17  
confident 75:10  
confirm 33:4  
confirmed 49:22  
conflicts 76:1  
confused... 25:7  
connect 30:16  
connected 30:13  
consideration 41:16 65:9  
70:25  
considered 61:1  
consists 67:2  
conspiracy 44:18  
conspiring 44:19  
constantly 42:9  
constituted 68:15  
contact 9:5 12:14  
contacted 18:20  
continuation 69:8  
continue 7:17,22,25 15:20,21  
36:6,21  
continuous 58:25 59:4  
conversation 61:23  
Conviction 23:6  
cooked 47:16  
cooperating 12:17  
copy 52:12  
corner 37:23  
corporal 59:8,11  
Corporation 54:13 55:8,17,24  
56:4 68:3,6 75:21 76:3

correct 11:18 19:12 24:10  
70:17 71:25 75:16  
corrected 13:15  
correctly 33:25  
council 50:4,6,8 53:1  
councilmember 50:7  
counsel 54:13 55:8,17,25 56:4  
65:18 68:3,6 76:3  
Counsel's 75:21  
count 10:6  
counted 69:1  
country 12:7 39:15 40:7  
County 23:5 24:3 27:22 28:1,  
10  
couple 4:1 7:14 8:10,18 9:17  
21:7 65:4 66:21  
court 7:7 24:9 28:5,6 33:21  
40:16,17  
covered 33:16  
covers 71:1  
cracks 13:21  
crazy 42:8 43:9  
creation 69:10  
Crickets 35:18  
crime 7:17,24 9:5 10:7 31:19  
35:10 40:25 41:4  
crimes 22:19 23:11  
criminal 46:18,19 50:12  
criminality 15:23  
criteria 11:12,17  
critical 21:12  
critically 7:15  
criticism 35:25  
criticize 35:22  
Cromwell 7:5  
culminated 58:14

culture... 15:2

---

**D**

---

daily 18:2  
Dalio 49:9  
danger 33:10  
Dante 7:9 55:2,6,8 74:21  
Darrell 64:25  
Darryl 5:12 48:5 49:5 64:12  
date 38:17 64:14  
Dated 32:19  
dates 65:21  
Davis 48:21 50:20,22,24  
day 4:16 18:3 31:13,17 35:10,  
14 36:3 39:3 41:10 45:7 71:2  
daylight 77:7  
days 8:13,16 31:15,16,21,24  
32:6 52:18,24 53:4,23  
DC 7:12 18:4  
de-fund 42:14  
deal 50:12 66:9,17  
dealing 66:11  
Dear 64:21  
death 47:14  
deceased 8:23  
deception 71:21  
decide 27:2  
decided 72:13  
decides 29:4  
decision 28:1 60:23 65:7 72:8  
declared 48:12  
decline 29:1  
declined 65:4  
dedicated 55:1  
deem 50:2

**deeply** 2:21  
**Defense** 43:10  
**defer** 61:9 69:12  
**deferred** 59:12  
**delay** 45:5  
**demand** 12:12 14:4,5  
**demanding** 31:12 44:17  
**department** 3:2,3 4:22 13:14  
14:6,9,13 15:3,5 18:8 21:13  
22:18 23:20,23,24 24:1,16  
25:19 26:22 27:8,11 29:11,13  
31:15,18 35:23 36:9 41:14,19  
45:14 46:24 47:22 49:10  
50:14 52:14 53:22 54:25 55:9,  
13,14 57:11 63:20  
**department's** 16:25 17:18  
**departmental** 57:10  
**departments** 29:13 37:22  
49:24 55:17  
**depending** 60:14  
**deputy** 13:19 14:18 17:21  
26:18 39:11,12 44:15  
**deserve** 14:3  
**desk** 14:22  
**desperately** 54:22  
**detailed** 3:17 24:23  
**details** 26:8 27:16 46:6  
**detained** 22:21  
**detective** 22:19 29:6,9,12  
45:19 59:11  
**detectives** 23:2 28:25 33:14  
47:21 49:23 50:1  
**detention** 15:6  
**determination** 16:4  
**determine** 69:2  
**Detroit** 2:10,14,25 3:9 4:18,22  
9:24 14:2 15:5 20:19,21,23  
25:18 27:11 31:7 35:23 39:2  
43:10 46:17 49:15 51:1 52:14

54:9 55:9,13 58:8,9,12,15,16  
60:12 64:3,4,5  
**Detroit's** 37:16  
**Detroiters** 22:17 25:12 45:6  
**detroitrewards.tv.** 9:6,16  
**Devos** 66:1  
**Dewaelsche** 3:24 6:5 10:13,14  
11:4,15,21 69:25 72:18 73:4  
74:13 75:13 76:10,11  
**dictated** 69:5  
**difference** 61:14  
**difficulty** 71:16  
**dignity** 14:4 76:21  
**diplomatic** 49:2  
**direct** 74:16  
**directing** 38:4  
**direction** 7:17  
**directly** 4:4  
**director** 50:13 57:7 59:24  
60:5,9,11 61:4,11 62:3  
**disabled** 59:2,5  
**disagree** 16:25 62:21  
**disappointed** 32:25 49:1  
**disciplinary** 23:22  
**discipline** 23:24 24:16  
**discuss** 46:7 53:22  
**discussion** 29:24 55:6  
**disgraced** 45:18  
**dismiss** 76:23  
**dispatched** 8:20  
**disqualifications** 57:22,23  
**distinction** 45:22  
**district** 5:16,20,22 22:3 34:22  
42:2 45:2  
**DMC** 14:21  
**document** 16:4

**documentation** 51:6  
**documented** 17:19 18:11  
22:22 25:1  
**doesn't** 35:12  
**dog** 21:10  
**Don** 7:7  
**don't** 17:9  
**doorbell** 31:21  
**doors** 27:6  
**Dorian** 65:3 73:21 74:1  
**DPD** 4:23 12:7 15:25 16:2  
22:20 23:10,12 25:19,23,25  
26:3 28:4 39:7,16 40:5 42:10  
45:16,21,25 47:14 49:10  
58:20 59:19,20 60:11,13 61:6,  
7,14  
**DPW** 50:25  
**Draco** 33:5  
**drag** 8:4  
**drastically** 9:22  
**draw** 45:22  
**Dream** 54:7  
**Drew** 7:4  
**drifting** 8:4  
**drive-by** 19:11 31:9  
**due** 7:16 13:21  
**Duggan** 56:14  
**Dunbar** 21:6,14  
**Dunning** 41:7  
**duties** 3:18  
**duty** 21:9 45:15  
**dying** 48:4

---

**E**

---

**earlier** 18:20 46:5,9 53:6  
**echo** 45:3

educate 46:5  
education 11:17  
elaborate 60:22  
elected 6:24 54:8  
Election 43:5 47:5,7  
Elgin 7:4  
eligibility 60:15  
email 30:7 43:12,16 68:21  
emails 43:13  
emergency 8:22  
emphasize 8:7  
employee 63:24  
employees 59:3 63:25  
employer 23:10  
encourage 46:21  
encouraged 22:7  
end 71:1  
ended 37:14 58:16  
enforcement 35:17,19  
enforcing 40:25 41:4  
engaged 14:11,17  
engaging 14:24  
enhanced 3:20  
enlightened 3:21  
ensure 45:15  
entertain 6:7,17  
entire 3:2,3 47:10 50:14,15  
entry 47:18,23,25  
equal 27:3  
equipment 43:25  
Eric 5:8 31:3,6  
escalated 27:16  
established 16:1 37:23  
evaluation 65:6

evening 35:7,8 38:24 40:10,11  
event 14:25 16:8  
events 51:21  
eventually 15:12  
eviction 26:24 27:19 42:20  
43:10 45:8  
evictions 27:12 45:12  
evidence 15:23  
Ewing 14:18 49:18 50:3  
ex-boyfriend 9:10  
exam 57:24  
Excellent 30:24  
exception 16:7 17:18,19  
exchanged 9:12  
excited 9:24 75:11  
exciting 10:2  
excuse 4:9 7:21 8:22 10:4  
16:15,18 63:6,9 68:23 69:14  
excused 5:25 6:2  
executing 45:8  
executive 65:1,3 75:19  
exemplary 4:2  
exist 37:18  
existence 15:14  
expert 68:11  
explain 44:4 72:19  
explained 37:16,17  
explaining 51:22 73:5  
express 21:5  
extremely 12:11 76:15

---

F

---

face 32:24 35:10 36:2  
faced 37:15  
facing 15:13

fact 20:22 31:16 33:8,17,18  
44:15 51:19 64:1 66:15  
failed 58:2,4  
failure 43:25 58:2,5  
faithful 4:20  
fall 31:17  
fallen 35:21  
falling 45:16  
false 31:17 33:23  
falsifies 51:5  
families 13:20  
family 12:14  
fantastic 7:16 29:9  
fatal 8:21 9:7  
fatalities 18:23  
fatally 9:2  
fault 33:24  
favor 6:14,21 29:21 30:20 77:3  
favoritism 71:13  
FBI 10:7  
feedback 26:4  
feel 75:10  
feels 44:18  
Felicia 65:7  
fell 20:2  
fellow 71:4  
fellows 58:14,19  
fewer 19:4  
fight 9:1  
figure 38:17 43:24 48:8  
figured 19:2  
file 28:5,7  
fill 10:25 11:3  
filled 10:18,23 57:11,12,14,15,  
16,17 66:20 69:10

**final** 23:16  
**find** 38:13,14 40:3  
**fine** 74:9  
**finest** 37:16 38:7  
**finished** 47:5 74:19  
**finishing** 66:23  
**fire** 49:24  
**firstly** 45:3  
**fiscal** 57:18  
**fists** 9:2  
**Fitzgerald** 7:12,14 10:21 11:7,  
19 12:21 17:25 18:4,12 19:3,  
7,13,15,17,20 20:9,13,16  
21:16,22,24 22:5,10,15 23:1,  
3,13,25 24:7,11,19,23 25:7,  
13,18 26:6,12,19 27:10,14,24  
28:9,24 29:9 30:24 36:13 37:7  
38:16,25 44:23 47:9 48:13,15,  
17 52:11  
**flat** 51:10  
**flow** 4:25  
**flyers** 14:21  
**FMLA** 58:25 59:3,4  
**focusing** 8:6  
**folder** 30:7  
**folks** 8:5 10:2 11:8  
**follow** 36:17 37:17  
**footage** 31:20 43:11 45:5  
**force** 4:21 10:7 15:9 20:14,17,  
18 43:22  
**form** 16:7 17:20,23  
**formally** 75:7  
**formed** 66:7,8,9 68:13 71:10  
**forms** 37:24  
**Fort** 2:14  
**forward** 3:14,17 12:19 13:25  
23:14 28:18 45:18 67:17

**Foster** 38:22 40:10,12,14  
**found** 2:7 15:12 21:23 44:2  
**Fourth** 2:12 8:25 9:25 10:2  
**Frank** 33:5  
**frankly** 27:5  
**freaking** 33:19  
**Fredia** 35:6  
**free** 73:10  
**Friday** 59:17  
**Fries** 7:4 41:13  
**from...** 73:10  
**front** 28:16 31:10 34:11 36:15  
64:18  
**frustrated** 34:2  
**fulfill** 11:12 68:16  
**full** 65:3,8 70:25  
**full-time** 56:2  
**fully** 28:18  
**functioning** 3:18  
**funny** 71:12  
**future** 28:4

---

**G**

---

**Garcia** 68:7  
**GARNIER** 2:6 3:1 5:8,12,14,  
15,17,18,19,21,23,24 6:1,2,4,  
5,6 7:1 31:2 35:5 38:21 41:23  
43:3 48:20 50:20 73:14,15,16,  
18 74:10,11,12,13,14,15  
**gas** 9:23  
**gave** 32:11 42:11 54:7 58:21  
**gentleman** 75:3  
**George** 35:6 38:21,24  
**germane** 63:4,15  
**get all** 50:17 66:19  
**Giglio** 23:18 24:1

**Gilmer** 45:1  
**Gilmore** 43:4  
**girlfriend** 9:10  
**give** 2:21 4:7,16 5:3 7:14  
31:20,22,23 36:18 41:5,6,15  
44:1 47:2 49:15 61:8 66:1  
72:11  
**glad** 61:17  
**glory** 4:16  
**God** 4:15  
**good** 4:15,20 7:12,13 13:1  
22:15 26:1,22 29:10 30:19  
31:4,5 35:7,8 37:8 38:24  
39:10 40:2,10,11 41:12,19,20  
48:23,25 49:17 50:22 54:16,  
18 57:7  
**Goss** 7:9 55:7,8 66:6 67:24  
74:21 75:14,17,22 76:8  
**gracious** 4:15  
**grade** 14:12  
**graduated** 58:6 59:16  
**graduates** 58:5  
**graduating** 10:25  
**graduation** 58:16  
**grand** 8:14  
**gray** 72:9  
**great** 3:3 4:18 38:9 55:21  
56:15 76:20  
**Greenlight** 9:19  
**ground** 2:18 49:14  
**group** 37:25 49:13  
**Grow** 58:15  
**guess** 60:22 63:19 68:22  
69:16  
**guidance** 76:20  
**guidelines** 15:4 61:6  
**guilty** 15:12



gun 9:2 19:24,25 47:13,18,23,  
25 48:2,3

gunfire 9:12

guy 30:12 73:23

guys 41:14,15 48:12 49:7  
50:5,10,12,14 53:4,21

---

**H**

---

Hakeem 31:16 42:11

half 19:8 20:7 33:2 44:6

hand 47:13 48:1

handle 25:24

handled 21:11 50:18

Handyside 7:7

happen 13:22 27:9 28:22  
35:12 39:6 62:4

happened 8:19,23 32:4 39:21  
40:7 42:4,17,23 45:6

happening 39:16 42:24 63:20

happy 17:16 25:13 30:16  
61:23 69:12,13

hard 12:18 19:7 42:10

hardest 12:6

Haring 41:25 42:2

harm 8:11

hate 65:14

He'll 56:2

headed 14:18

headquarters 2:11 33:6

health 8:12 10:16,19 39:5

hear 26:4 34:18 35:11,15,18,  
22,25 38:9 47:11 62:25

heard 25:5 32:21 42:1,18 43:7  
44:25 45:13 47:6 48:23,24  
49:1,3,16,21 50:21,22 52:10  
63:2

hearing 42:3

Heart 31:7

hearts 76:19

held 22:23 33:22,23 64:24

helpful 76:15

helping 21:9 66:17,18

helps 10:24

Henry 7:8

Hernandez 6:3 10:11 29:18,20  
49:6 56:18,20 57:1,4 61:10,  
11,12 62:5 69:19,21 70:4  
74:12 75:5 76:25 77:2

hey 25:24 31:20

hide 44:19

high 14:12 40:5

higher 15:16

highly 60:23 63:12,13

Hill 43:4,5 45:1

hired 57:21 71:6

hires 58:7,11

hiring 71:2

history 3:16

hit 2:18

hold 40:22

hole 20:3

holy 5:4

home 5:2 19:9,10,22 43:14

homes 5:3

homicide 10:5 12:6,7 20:14,  
15,18 29:12 30:11 47:21 49:9,  
10,16,17 50:1

homicides 7:18 50:2

honor 3:8

honorable 7:12 38:25

honored 36:7,8

honorees 22:20

hope 13:19 39:11,12 61:13

67:22

hopping 44:8

hospital 8:21 20:2

hours 16:7,10 17:23 71:14

house 9:11 31:10,11 34:11  
36:15

HR 57:8 59:25 60:3,22 61:14  
62:3 63:15 68:11 74:16

huge 9:20

Human 52:6 57:6

humanity 63:14

hundred 23:18 24:8,14 43:18

hundreds 52:22

Hunt 31:3 34:6

hurt 53:18

---

**I**

---

idea 26:22 61:16 72:11

identified 11:9

identifies 61:7

identify 11:5 43:16

IG 65:19

ill 42:21

illegal 8:4,6 15:23

illegally 22:21 33:15

immediately 39:18

impaired 24:2

implication 70:8

implied 71:24

important 14:20 15:13 18:7  
40:19

importantly 41:13,18

impossible 47:19,20

impounded 33:14

improper 72:15

**inadmissible** 15:24  
**incident** 9:7 16:5 21:20 53:10, 18  
**incidents** 8:18  
**included** 59:10  
**includes** 57:12  
**inconsistent** 44:13  
**increase** 11:10  
**incredible** 56:15  
**independent** 55:15  
**individual** 11:8 25:20 71:2  
**individuals** 12:2 24:2  
**inform** 38:6  
**information** 9:13 32:3 37:19 40:21 42:6,7 44:1,2,11 45:15 58:8 64:4  
**informed** 18:2 51:20  
**initially** 61:2 68:25  
**initiated** 14:14  
**initiative** 15:1  
**injured** 7:15  
**injuries** 7:16  
**innocent** 45:7  
**inside** 19:9  
**insight** 2:20 60:2  
**installed** 9:22  
**instance** 17:17 67:24  
**instances** 16:3  
**integrity** 23:6 32:2 43:5 47:5,7  
**intent** 27:18  
**interaction** 12:10  
**interest** 54:17 76:1  
**interests** 76:2,6  
**interim** 54:25 74:21 76:13  
**intermediate** 58:25 59:4

**Internal** 32:23,24  
**interns** 58:19  
**internship** 58:13  
**interpreters** 7:6  
**interview** 60:1,5,8,20,25 61:8, 20 71:20  
**interviewed** 39:24,25 60:7,16, 24 71:13 74:3  
**interviewing** 71:14  
**interviews** 4:1 60:16  
**intimate** 26:8  
**introduce** 55:5  
**Introduction** 6:24  
**introductions** 5:11  
**investigate** 8:21 20:20 22:25  
**investigating** 20:14,15 22:18  
**investigation** 8:24 26:8,9 27:22 28:17,21  
**investigations** 46:18  
**investigative** 29:10  
**investigator** 7:4,5  
**investigators** 47:21 66:20  
**invite** 67:13  
**involved** 20:23  
**involvement** 53:13  
**Isaiah** 4:11  
**isn't** 48:9  
**issue** 46:6 53:3  
**issued** 18:5  
**issues** 8:15  
**is...** 16:17 74:20  
**item** 14:20 26:15 70:17  
**it's** 49:17  
**I'd** 62:19  
**I'm** 73:5

---

**J**

---

**Jackie** 31:3  
**Jahdante** 48:21,25  
**jail** 47:8  
**Jasmine** 7:3  
**job** 12:12 21:6 33:25 49:7,24 50:1 66:24 72:21 76:3  
**jobs** 11:19  
**John** 8:25  
**Johnell** 29:6  
**join** 75:7  
**Jonya** 7:2  
**Joshua** 7:3  
**joy** 5:3 51:9  
**judge** 22:2,8 28:15 33:22  
**judicial** 15:8 17:18  
**July** 10:22 57:8,9,18,21 58:7, 9,12,21  
**jump** 33:9  
**jurisdiction** 3:7  
**justice** 50:10  
**justification** 19:15,21  
**justified** 42:13  
**just...** 19:13 73:6

---

**K**

---

**Kadado** 4:12  
**Kaniesha** 47:14,25 48:1 52:13  
**keeping** 49:13 76:13  
**Kemeny** 2:13  
**key** 36:14 64:23  
**kids** 14:16 41:8  
**killed** 35:17 43:23 45:7  
**kind** 36:23

kindly 41:22  
kindness 38:3  
King 54:7  
knock 27:6  
knowing 12:9  
knowledge 27:4  
Kristin 42:13

---

L

---

lack 12:3  
ladder 20:2  
lady 70:22 73:25  
Lance 10:4,8  
larger 52:20  
lastly 10:3  
late 37:19  
law 35:17,19 37:22 40:23  
54:25 55:9  
lawful 15:6  
laws 47:19  
laying 52:22  
lead 20:22  
leaders 38:10  
leadership 3:9 12:24 20:20  
76:20  
leaping 44:8  
leave 27:20 36:16 47:18,23  
58:23 59:1,5,6 68:9  
leaving 10:4 37:9  
Lee 20:14 21:20 31:25 32:4  
42:4 49:11 50:12  
left 13:2 33:8,12 47:12 48:2  
59:20  
left-handed 48:2  
leg 20:3  
legal 15:13 26:25 45:25 61:19

65:18 68:3,4 70:7,8  
legally 70:25  
lengthy 2:17 11:25  
Leonard 14:18  
letter 21:4 38:6  
letting 53:25  
Lever 41:7  
lie 33:22  
lied 32:24 33:21  
lieutenant 35:5 39:1,12 40:2  
50:7 59:8,11  
Lieutenants 28:25  
life 15:11 33:10 34:3  
lifelong 45:2  
Linda 5:15 54:18  
list 23:18,19,21,24 24:1,2,6,  
15,17,18 51:3 60:15  
listen 47:7,8,9 50:4,11  
listening 41:21 45:10 49:3,18  
Littleton 31:16 42:11  
live 34:19,25 35:25 36:8 64:4,  
5  
lobbied 62:3  
lobby 62:5  
locate 37:10,18  
located 2:13  
lodged 23:4  
log 66:17  
long 31:18 43:11 67:15 75:9,  
15,20  
longer 41:3  
loose 21:10 41:20  
Lord 4:17 5:3  
lost 13:21 37:14  
lot 4:3 8:5,16 12:23 14:23 20:4  
21:25 34:21 37:4,5 39:20,21

42:4,17,19  
loud 35:15  
love 5:4 13:6  
LT 35:7,9  
Luca 37:20  
luck 4:3  
Lydia 61:17  
lying 33:24

---

M

---

Madam 59:24 65:18  
made 6:10 12:23 16:4 28:14  
29:3,19 33:7,8 37:13,14 52:16  
61:23 65:7 68:7 72:8,14 77:1  
made... 56:17  
Main 37:21  
main... 62:24  
major 52:19 53:3  
majority 29:10 63:24  
make 12:18 14:8 33:23 34:15  
35:13 36:24,25 39:1 46:15  
51:14 53:1,8 54:20 67:14  
maker 9:3  
makeup 46:23  
making 13:23 15:5  
malfunctioned 25:21  
man 9:3 25:22 33:9 37:11  
management 18:6 40:24  
manager 65:1,4 66:21 73:20  
marathon 13:15  
Mark 35:6  
Mary 7:3  
Massey 40:8  
material 15:6  
matter 20:20 33:7,17 53:11  
66:15 74:17

**matters** 40:16 46:19 50:13  
52:14 65:15  
**mayor** 46:24 54:8 56:14  
**mayor's** 34:8  
**mayoral** 58:14,18  
**Mcconico** 22:3  
**MCL** 41:4  
**MCOLES** 57:23  
**media** 7:8 21:24 22:1 42:5  
53:6  
**medical** 59:1,5  
**meet** 37:11  
**meeting** 2:9,11 4:24 5:1 13:19  
25:1 37:9 49:21 50:9 52:1  
54:14 64:24 65:22 66:2,12  
67:15 68:14 71:17 72:8,21  
77:10  
**meetings** 18:2 49:21 67:16  
71:18 75:8  
**member** 3:2 36:7 50:6,8  
**members** 3:11 4:23,24 12:15  
29:1 50:4 51:24 59:18,19 69:3  
**memo** 32:11,15 53:9,17 74:16  
**memorandum** 64:11  
**memos** 52:12  
**men** 35:12  
**mental** 8:12 10:16,19 39:5  
**mentally** 42:21  
**mention** 43:18  
**mentioned** 53:6 56:12  
**messaging** 19:25  
**met** 60:15  
**metric** 36:22  
**metropolitan** 52:19  
**mic** 19:16  
**Michael** 4:12

**Michelle** 35:6  
**Michigan** 20:16  
**Microphone** 19:6,14  
**middle** 37:1  
**military** 59:1  
**millimeter** 47:11  
**million** 31:14  
**mind** 45:9 57:9 72:14  
**mine** 34:10,11,12  
**minister** 4:11 5:8 31:2,4,6  
45:4  
**minors** 18:22  
**minute** 39:24  
**minutes** 6:18  
**misinformation** 42:9,15  
**misrepresents** 51:5  
**missed** 52:1  
**misunderstanding** 12:4  
**model** 9:3  
**moment** 15:14  
**Monday** 2:19  
**money** 34:21 42:15  
**monitor** 12:16  
**month** 10:25 51:9 57:8,21  
**months** 43:23 56:12 67:16  
**Moore** 6:1  
**moral** 45:25  
**morning** 7:20 9:19,24 31:8  
**mother** 30:11,13,15  
**mothers** 49:13,14  
**motion** 6:8,10,16,17,23 29:19  
53:21 54:20 56:10,17 70:12  
73:18 74:15,20 77:1,5  
**motivated** 34:24  
**motivation** 34:14

**motorcycle** 38:4  
**mouth** 33:1  
**move** 26:15 49:24,25 67:16  
76:23  
**moved** 6:9,19,20 29:17  
**MSP** 20:20,21  
**murder** 42:13 49:22  
**murdered** 12:15 49:14  
**murders** 49:19  
**Murphy** 7:5

---

**N**

---

**naked** 44:6  
**names** 23:19,23 24:11,14  
**narrative** 31:17  
**nation** 4:22  
**National** 39:22  
**nay** 71:5  
**necessarily** 70:17  
**needed** 41:1,3 55:10 70:18  
72:20  
**Network** 39:23  
**news** 31:9,13 43:20 44:6  
**nicely** 8:5  
**night** 10:1  
**nilly** 46:23  
**nobody's** 43:25 44:1  
**non-detroiters** 58:10  
**non-fatal** 7:19  
**non-residents** 63:23  
**noon** 31:9  
**note** 14:25  
**notepads** 50:5  
**notified** 14:10  
**noting** 69:9

**NPO** 11:10  
**NPOS** 10:16,19,20  
**number** 14:10 19:7 22:20  
31:11 51:20 62:21 74:24  
**numbers** 9:21 57:9  
**nurses** 40:3

---

**O**

---

**Oakman** 51:9  
**Oakwood** 8:20  
**oath** 33:11,20  
**objection** 65:11,13  
**objections** 65:10 69:23,24  
**obligation** 3:18  
**obtained** 15:24  
**occurred** 9:1 18:21  
**OCI** 33:8,12  
**offense** 24:25  
**office** 16:10 22:24 23:5,9 24:3  
28:1,11,12,15 55:2,3 74:23  
75:1,21  
**officer** 11:6,16 15:10,13 32:22  
33:4,18 38:3,14 43:19,20  
44:2,10 51:5,6  
**officer's** 51:4  
**officers** 7:15 8:20 10:19 11:13  
14:10 15:5 18:1,3 20:19  
23:19,21,23 24:9,17 32:5  
33:3,11,17 34:15,16,24 35:17,  
19 38:8,9 39:3,19,20 43:16  
51:3 52:20 57:12,13 59:8,10  
63:21  
**official** 25:2,3 51:5  
**officials** 6:25  
**on-duty** 7:16  
**one-sided** 36:4  
**ongoing** 45:12 66:16

**online** 44:14 52:21 66:13  
73:12  
**on...** 52:8  
**open** 13:2 26:7 65:22 66:13  
**opened** 41:16  
**operate** 12:5 65:23  
**Operation** 9:18  
**opinion** 27:1 55:12 56:5  
**opportunities** 41:16  
**opportunity** 2:22 4:8 11:20  
60:24 61:8 71:4  
**oppose** 77:5  
**opposed** 6:16 30:22 40:23  
**opposite** 20:21,22  
**opposition** 44:5  
**option** 59:12  
**oral** 30:25  
**order** 2:3 4:25 16:21,22 17:15  
56:21,24 57:1,4 70:16 76:13  
**ordinance** 53:2  
**ordinances** 36:17  
**organization** 3:16  
**organizer** 44:14  
**our...** 57:3  
**outraged** 19:10 45:12  
**outstanding** 29:14 35:11  
**overdose** 8:17  
**Overdosed** 8:15  
**oversight** 21:12 45:15 46:11  
54:12  
**owners** 36:18

---

**P**

---

**paid** 42:16 58:25 59:4  
**Palmer** 42:4

**paralegal** 55:20  
**parameters** 3:7  
**parental** 58:25 59:4  
**parents** 20:3  
**park** 33:13 42:5  
**parliamentarian** 70:11 73:12  
**part** 3:8 7:24 16:25 26:25 27:6  
44:8  
**part-time** 56:1  
**participate** 14:23 20:17 27:12  
**participated** 3:25 14:23  
**participating** 58:18,19  
**parties** 8:6,7  
**partner** 9:18  
**party** 8:4,11 9:23  
**passed** 6:23 53:21 58:1,4  
**passes** 74:15  
**passing** 58:1,4  
**past** 2:19 8:10 68:6 72:1  
**path** 65:19  
**patience** 38:6  
**patient** 16:22  
**PATILLO** 57:7 60:5,9,11 61:4,  
11  
**pay** 11:11  
**peace** 5:3 27:14  
**penalties** 40:16  
**pending** 2:5 10:8 27:25 59:20  
**people** 4:17 10:23 12:19 13:4  
16:13 34:9 35:22 36:3 39:5  
42:8 43:9 45:11 46:16,21  
49:20 51:14,18 63:14 67:3  
71:14,15,16 73:1  
**perceived** 76:1  
**percent** 43:18  
**period** 12:16 46:19 76:12

perjury 22:21  
permanent 57:22  
permission 6:2  
person 9:1 15:25 26:25 30:9,  
17 32:10 44:6,10 45:7 52:22  
71:6 72:24 74:22  
person's 15:11  
personal 56:12  
personally 12:14 40:22 41:15  
53:14 65:25  
personnel 57:21 59:6 60:17  
62:3 64:13,15,22 65:2,6 66:18  
68:11,13 69:8,13 73:10  
Phonetic 66:1  
physical 57:24 58:3  
physics 47:19  
piece 27:20 47:15  
pile 13:3  
place 46:9,10 68:4  
plan 59:12,13  
playing 19:24  
pleased 13:22  
pleasure 3:8 29:15 69:18  
76:22  
plenty 33:7  
PM 2:2,10,12  
point 24:12 27:17,21 33:24  
34:2 46:20 56:24 57:1,4 61:16  
62:15 69:3,7 70:16  
police 2:2 3:2 4:21,22 6:24  
7:11 15:5 16:16,25 17:5 20:17  
21:13 24:1 25:18 26:23 27:11  
31:14,18 33:10,23 35:23 36:8  
37:9 39:2,11,20 40:19 41:4  
42:14,16,20 44:10,13,18 46:9,  
11 48:14 49:5,7,8 52:14  
53:11,13,14 54:10,12,21 55:1,  
13,14 57:12,13 58:9,11,23  
59:8,9,10 61:5 63:20 64:11,22  
75:1,16

policing 39:14  
policy 13:24 15:4,25 17:19,24  
27:10 46:7,22,23,25 53:21  
59:25 60:2 65:1,4 66:21 73:20  
poor 34:9,25 37:19  
posed 60:18  
position 11:17 53:16 54:21  
57:15 61:17,18 63:14 65:1,5  
66:12  
positions 10:17 11:1 57:12,17  
66:10,20,22 68:17 69:9 71:15  
positive 38:8  
positives 9:17  
possession 51:2  
post 54:21  
posted 11:19 52:21  
posting 65:20  
powers 47:1,2  
practice 13:23  
praise 4:16 35:25 38:3 46:9  
49:4  
praised 30:12  
pray 5:3,4  
prayer 4:9  
prayers 5:1  
precedent 53:5  
precinct 2:13 8:25 9:25 10:2  
11:8 39:11 41:9 49:12  
precincts 11:13  
predicament 37:17  
prejudiced 36:5  
prerogative 68:19 69:2  
present 5:13,16,18,19,21 6:5  
7:1 10:12 14:1 20:19 42:20  
53:24 67:3 73:7  
presentation 12:23 13:7 59:21  
presented 65:8 70:24

presenting 57:8  
press 21:20 22:3,7 32:18 44:4  
Pressley 6:4 10:11 21:1,2,3,18  
68:12 70:16,24 71:11 72:1  
73:7 74:4,14  
pretty 54:15  
prevented 8:11  
previous 45:3  
previously 70:11 75:20  
prior 44:7 72:14  
priority 45:14,20  
private 53:11  
pro 45:9  
probable 15:7,14,21,22 16:1,  
4,6 18:10 46:7  
problem 33:11 66:25 76:5  
problems 13:12,17  
procedure 13:22 59:25  
procedures 15:4  
process 2:17 3:21 10:19 11:5  
13:6 27:6 36:12 45:8 60:3,22  
61:21 65:24 66:5 71:24 73:3  
74:25 75:9  
profanity 51:10  
professional 42:19  
Program 14:15,16  
programs 14:13,17 58:13  
promoted 23:21 24:17 29:5  
34:17  
promotion 29:1 33:19  
prompt 15:8 17:18  
prompted 69:10  
promptly 45:5  
pronounce 39:12  
proposal 26:23  
proposed 30:9 52:25

**prosecutor** 27:23 28:14  
**prosecutor's** 16:10 23:5 24:3  
**prosecutor's** 28:1,11,12  
**protect** 49:8  
**protected** 44:10  
**protecting** 49:7  
**protection** 4:23  
**protections** 27:4  
**proud** 36:3  
**proudly** 29:5  
**prove** 20:1  
**proven** 41:17  
**provide** 9:14 15:4,7,8 46:1  
**provided** 65:3 68:21  
**public** 2:10 4:7 5:5 14:9 25:1  
28:16,19,21 40:18 44:3,19  
51:17 53:18 58:17 63:19  
66:12,13 75:8  
**publicly** 21:5  
**published** 44:14  
**pull** 52:21  
**pulled** 9:1 37:15  
**purpose** 15:3 38:2  
**pursue** 72:16  
**pushing** 45:18  
**put** 11:20 18:7 24:20 28:7,15  
32:18 44:17 54:10 66:13,22

---

**Q**

---

**qualifications** 65:6  
**qualified** 60:23  
**question** 10:15 11:16 15:13  
16:19 17:2,7,14 22:13 23:7,16  
25:14 26:1,2 27:7 32:11 45:24  
60:18 65:16  
**questioning** 73:6

**questions** 10:9,12 14:6 15:18  
23:17 25:5,6,15 26:14 42:3  
44:16 45:21 46:3 59:20,22  
62:11 63:3  
**quick** 7:14 8:18 9:17 11:16  
19:23 28:3  
**quickly** 10:23 27:16 62:17  
**Quinn** 7:7  
**quit** 52:4  
**quorum** 2:3,5 5:7 6:6 67:4,5,8,  
18,19 69:4 72:20,21,23,25  
73:2

---

**R**

---

**racing** 8:4  
**raise** 56:6 62:14  
**raised** 25:10 67:1  
**raising** 25:11  
**rally** 21:8  
**range** 35:1  
**rank** 29:2,5  
**rape** 33:16  
**rate** 57:11 58:1,2,4,5  
**rationale** 61:22  
**read** 11:25 46:16,21  
**ready** 3:6  
**real** 50:5  
**realize** 30:17  
**realized** 8:24  
**realm** 29:11  
**reason** 10:18 19:15,21 45:4  
**reasonable** 15:15  
**reasons** 18:5  
**recall** 24:11 31:18 52:16  
**receive** 52:12  
**received** 44:12 52:15

**receive...** 52:11  
**recent** 18:8 49:21  
**recently** 35:18  
**recognition** 9:25  
**recommendation** 28:25 65:8  
69:16,21 70:24 72:10 73:6,11  
**recommending** 29:5  
**record** 10:10 24:22 25:2,3  
43:6 46:6 48:22 49:1  
**recorded** 25:2  
**recording** 31:10  
**recovered** 8:9  
**Recreation** 2:13  
**recruiting** 57:19  
**rectify** 40:1  
**recuse** 76:6  
**red** 9:3  
**redacted** 31:11,13  
**reduction** 7:18,22,24  
**reference** 12:19 60:21  
**referring** 17:4  
**reflect** 10:10  
**regard** 10:15 68:13  
**region** 35:18,21  
**register** 37:12  
**registered** 38:1  
**regularly** 51:25  
**relate** 39:16 40:5  
**related** 8:12,15 62:16  
**relates** 21:19  
**relationship** 40:25  
**relationships** 40:19  
**release** 21:20,21 22:3 32:3,5,  
18 40:4 44:4 52:16 53:9,17  
**released** 22:3 28:19,21 31:12

39:17 42:12 43:1 45:16 49:11  
50:14,15,17 52:18 53:12,23

**releases** 22:8

**releasing** 45:5

**relevant** 15:3

**remarks** 2:22

**remember** 50:6 53:20 74:8

**remind** 61:15

**remove** 36:18 44:8

**repeat** 73:19

**repercussions** 15:11

**report** 2:5,6 3:17 7:11 10:16  
12:20 16:5 24:17 31:14 33:8,  
23 48:19 53:7 57:8 63:15  
64:3,7 65:19 70:12 72:7,13

**reporter** 7:7

**reports** 33:7 52:12

**report...** 16:16

**represent** 54:22

**representatives** 4:21 6:25  
45:20

**represented** 54:16,19 55:22

**representing** 36:3 76:5

**request** 16:9 24:20 28:10

**requested** 5:24 60:20

**requesting** 14:10

**require** 70:12,19

**requisite** 11:12

**researchers** 55:19

**residence** 31:19

**residency** 58:8 63:21 64:4

**resident** 45:2

**residents** 58:12 63:23 64:1

**Resiliency** 14:19

**resolution** 53:1

**resolved** 28:18

**Resource** 57:6

**resources** 41:1,2 52:6

**respect** 14:4 32:1,25 33:11,20  
34:21 62:19 63:10,12

**respectfully** 16:24

**respects** 63:13,14

**respond** 32:11 43:13 44:22

**responded** 43:12

**responders** 10:1

**responding** 8:15

**response** 60:21

**responses** 65:5

**responsibilities** 3:20 46:17

**responsibility** 45:25

**rest** 5:3

**restricted** 59:1,5

**result** 71:3

**resume** 4:2

**resumes** 4:1

**retired** 22:19

**retirement** 9:8 59:12

**return** 59:19

**returning** 59:18

**Reverend** 39:22

**reverse** 63:24

**reversed** 68:5

**review** 15:7,8 16:3,6 17:19  
18:2 65:5,18,24 66:5

**reviewed** 68:5

**review...** 17:1

**revise** 53:16

**revised** 47:1

**rid** 36:19

**ridiculous** 31:24

**rightfully** 21:12

**rights** 34:3 41:1,4

**ring** 31:20

**risk** 18:5 40:23

**robberies** 7:21 9:23

**Robert** 7:2 16:21 76:12,16

**robust** 13:24

**Rocking** 21:7

**rodents** 37:4

**Rodriguez** 44:5

**role** 11:12 15:2 75:20

**roll** 5:12 14:25 18:17 21:9  
70:4,6,20,21 72:2 73:9,11,13

**Romero** 50:7

**Ronald** 38:21 40:14

**Roo** 43:5 47:5,7

**room** 8:22 47:10

**roughly** 63:21,25

**routinely** 22:21

**rules** 16:21 66:14

**running** 2:18

**runs** 8:12

---

**S**

---

**Sacred** 31:7

**sacrifices** 35:13

**safe** 5:1 36:25

**Safety** 2:11 58:17

**Santiago** 50:7

**sat** 71:14

**Saturday** 37:12

**scenario** 9:10

**scene** 20:19 21:10 25:23  
26:24 48:3

**scheduled** 57:25 58:3

**school** 14:12,13 21:8 37:22



41:8  
**schools** 14:11,14 41:10,11  
**scope** 51:15  
**scraped** 51:10  
**search** 19:23  
**seasoned** 47:20,21  
**seconded** 6:13 29:20  
**secretary** 2:7,16 25:5 60:19  
61:17 64:7 65:18 66:5 67:24  
75:7,15,20  
**Secretary's** 2:4  
**sections** 49:25  
**sedan** 9:3  
**Sederick** 21:6,14  
**seen...** 23:1  
**select** 61:18 68:20  
**self-appointed** 66:4  
**send** 11:2 38:5 53:1 54:13  
**sends** 56:14  
**senior** 62:18,22 63:8  
**separations** 58:22 59:9  
**September** 2:10,12  
**sergeant** 7:7 10:3 28:23 29:2,  
6,14 30:9,10 49:9 59:10  
**sergeants** 28:25 59:8  
**series** 12:18  
**servants** 40:18  
**serve** 2:25 3:5 27:6 68:16  
**served** 75:18,19  
**service** 8:12,13,17 10:5 12:3  
38:15 39:9 51:18  
**serviced** 8:14,17  
**services** 7:8  
**serving** 4:17  
**set** 20:24 26:13 36:21

**setting** 30:10  
**settle** 72:2  
**setup** 37:21  
**seventh** 49:12 72:24  
**seventies** 34:16  
**share** 13:6 21:15 61:3 68:9  
**shared** 68:23  
**shelter** 32:23 33:3,17,19  
**Sherman** 20:14 21:20 31:25  
32:4 42:4 43:23 49:11 50:11  
**shoot** 20:21 47:12 48:4 53:14  
**shooting** 8:21 9:8 12:8 20:15  
25:19 31:9 53:15  
**shootings** 7:20 18:21,24  
19:12  
**short** 15:9 25:16 45:16 76:14  
**shot** 9:2 18:23 19:8,9,22 25:22  
44:9  
**shout** 41:5,6  
**show** 11:11 39:24 71:16  
**showed** 8:22 21:10 42:12  
62:19  
**shows** 58:2,5  
**shut** 8:8  
**shutdown** 8:7  
**sick** 59:2,6  
**side** 47:12 48:2 55:13  
**significant** 8:18  
**silenced** 65:15  
**silent** 35:16  
**similar** 52:18  
**Simon** 22:19 45:19  
**single** 43:21 52:1  
**sir** 3:10,13 4:13 10:8 19:16  
20:12 21:2,22 22:10,12,15  
25:16 26:7,12 28:2,24 48:13  
50:23 59:22 62:1 72:6,12 75:4

**Sisterhood** 14:14  
**sit** 61:23  
**site** 21:25  
**sites** 22:1  
**sitting** 34:1 37:3 43:14 55:2,24  
**situation** 13:16 20:23 25:24  
32:5 48:11 50:12 63:24 70:7  
**situations** 13:14  
**sixties** 34:16  
**skilled** 2:18 74:22  
**skin** 39:25  
**sky** 46:23  
**Smith** 5:14 10:12 18:14,19  
19:11 20:8 30:18 48:21,23,25  
64:9,10,17,21 65:1 71:7,9,12  
73:12,15 74:7  
**sneaky** 71:22  
**social** 21:24 42:5 53:6  
**solicited** 37:20  
**someone's** 33:2  
**someone's** 8:8  
**Sonya** 40:8  
**sort** 12:8 45:5  
**sought** 17:22  
**South** 2:14  
**space** 76:21  
**spaghetti** 47:16  
**speak** 19:1,16 28:13 29:8  
36:5,10,11 50:3 60:3,11,12  
62:8 65:14 68:12  
**speaker** 41:24 43:3  
**speakers** 35:5 41:24  
**speaking** 50:6 62:9 71:1  
**special** 64:15,17,22 65:2,6,16  
66:6 68:13 69:5,6,8 71:17  
73:10

specific 15:1  
specifically 13:5  
speech 54:7  
spent 29:10  
spoke 43:15  
sports 40:15  
spot 37:23  
spreading 42:9,14  
spreadsheet 30:2  
sprint 13:15  
St 8:25  
stable 42:22  
staff 3:3,16,19 6:24 7:1 25:4  
staffing 10:15 57:10  
stage 61:13  
stalking 33:15  
stand 20:6 27:1 36:1 46:2 68:5  
standard 15:16 40:5  
standing 2:24  
standpoint 24:14  
start 4:7 5:8 13:3 31:2 40:25  
59:14 74:25  
started 57:18  
starting 2:19  
state 20:17 21:13 37:10 39:20  
43:6 48:14,22 52:13 60:2,8,  
14,17 61:8 68:24  
stated 12:10 36:14 39:24  
53:17  
statement 28:16  
statements 44:12  
statesman 62:18,23 63:8  
stating 39:2  
stations 9:23  
stats 35:10

stay 12:14  
stellar 2:20 30:13  
step 35:14 36:5  
Stephanie 7:6  
stepped 48:6  
Steven 41:25 42:2  
Stevie 12:18  
stickers 34:13  
stippling 47:18  
stole 76:17  
stop 31:12 33:9 50:16,17  
stopped 37:16  
Stoppers 9:5  
stopping 8:6  
store 9:23  
story 38:2,10  
street 2:14 8:7 37:2 38:4  
streets 36:16  
strengthen 9:15  
stress 39:15  
strike 36:2  
strongly 46:21  
student 37:19,20 38:1  
students 37:12 38:1 58:17  
59:13,15,18  
stuff 8:9 14:24 29:3 38:17 48:3  
51:12,19  
subject 8:21  
submit 25:22 26:3  
submitted 16:9 27:22  
subpoena 51:19  
suggest 12:22 13:7  
suicide 48:3,12,15 49:20,22,  
23  
suicides 50:2

Sullivan 10:4  
summer 18:21  
Sunday 8:19  
supervising 7:4,5  
supervisor 16:2  
supervisory 15:7  
support 3:5 6:12 35:19,22  
76:25  
supported 6:21  
suppose 34:21  
supposedly 47:20  
surgery 44:7  
suspects 22:22  
suspensions 59:7  
suspicion 15:15  
sworn 57:13,15,19 58:7,9,10,  
13,22,24 59:6 64:4  
system 28:6 32:25 39:6

---

T

---

table 56:6 69:22  
tables 21:9  
tabs 2:7  
tag 36:17  
takes 31:18 68:4  
taking 2:24 21:9 46:5 68:8  
Talent 58:15  
talked 13:11 30:14  
talking 17:13 26:11 32:17 51:7  
71:24,25 74:7 75:25  
Tamara 5:14 65:1  
Tanya 14:18  
tase 25:20  
tased 44:2  
taser 53:10

**tasers** 25:20 44:9  
**task** 10:7 12:13 18:6 20:14,17,18  
**Taura** 43:3,8  
**taxpayer** 42:15  
**Taylor** 7:3 42:13  
**team** 3:8,9  
**tedious** 75:9  
**teletype** 18:5  
**teletypes** 18:7  
**telling** 33:2 38:2 48:6  
**Temporary** 57:22  
**Teresa** 7:2  
**term** 44:18  
**terms** 3:17,19,21 12:4,7,9,12 13:23 46:17,21 60:3 62:3 63:21 64:3 65:23,24 66:17 68:3,7 69:6 76:5  
**terrible** 49:11,12,17  
**testify** 24:9 51:3,4  
**testing** 57:23  
**Texas** 40:6  
**thanking** 38:6  
**that...** 53:23  
**That's** 34:21  
**There's** 19:13  
**the...** 15:18 62:16 63:4  
**thing** 27:16 40:18,21 52:23 72:5  
**things** 13:22 14:9 18:7 23:7 30:15 36:24 37:1 39:21 40:12,15,21 44:17,19 50:2 51:16 52:10 62:21 71:25  
**thinks** 47:3  
**Thirdly** 40:24  
**Thirkill** 13:11

**this...** 17:5  
**thought** 35:3  
**thousand** 63:25  
**threatened** 33:5  
**Thursday** 2:9,12 37:8  
**tickets** 34:23  
**Tigers** 9:24 10:1  
**tighten** 41:20  
**time** 2:3,16 3:5 7:19,25 11:25 12:16 16:2 23:17 24:4 29:10 32:7 33:25 34:2,6 35:3,23 36:18 38:17 43:15,22 46:5,8,10 50:3 51:25 52:25 53:2 54:14,20 57:17 62:20,22 66:2 67:15 75:15 76:14  
**times** 34:10,12,13 39:21 42:19,23 53:7 61:16 62:21  
**tire** 51:10  
**tired** 33:10  
**today** 2:1,9 22:17 30:18 45:21 46:5,12 55:24  
**Today's** 64:13  
**toes** 44:8  
**tomorrow** 9:24 10:3 59:14,16  
**top** 45:13,20  
**total** 8:14 44:5 57:14,16,19,25 58:6,8,9,23 59:7,12,15,17 64:4  
**totally** 31:24 34:20  
**tow** 34:10,22  
**towed** 34:9,12,13  
**towing** 34:8 36:11  
**town** 67:10,12,13  
**to...** 61:9,11 64:7,20 65:14 76:3  
**tracking** 17:20,23 50:25  
**traffic** 37:16 38:4  
**training** 11:18 15:1 64:13,15,23 65:2,7,17 66:18 68:11,14

69:8,13  
**trajectory** 47:13,17  
**transaction** 68:4  
**transit** 11:1,2  
**transparency** 32:2 39:18 40:4 42:24  
**trash** 21:10  
**travel** 5:2  
**traveled** 47:14  
**treated** 14:4  
**tremendous** 12:13  
**trend** 7:17,22,25  
**trial** 15:12  
**trigger** 39:25  
**trust** 31:25  
**Tuesday** 9:17 74:25  
**turn** 9:9 37:14  
**turned** 35:2  
**Twelfth** 41:8  
**type** 11:6 28:7 32:3 67:23 71:13  
**Tyson** 65:8 74:4,5  
**Tyus** 65:3 73:21  

---

**U**

---

**UF001** 16:7  
**unapologetic** 36:19  
**unbelievable** 33:16,20  
**unbiased** 56:7  
**undercover** 32:22 33:3,4  
**understand** 12:17 26:10 32:4 47:22  
**understanding** 27:24 60:19  
**undertake** 15:10  
**Underwood** 7:2

unfair 12:8  
unfinished 64:9  
union 40:22  
unique 54:15  
unit 11:9 12:22,25 13:5 23:6  
units 11:14 12:7 58:20  
University 37:10  
unknown 9:3  
unprecedented 36:2  
unreasonable 61:2  
unresolved 30:16  
unsupported 16:6  
update 12:5  
updated 24:4  
updates 7:14 64:23  
uphold 49:8  
uptick 18:24  
urge 45:19  
usual 43:12  
us... 56:14

---

V

---

vacancies 57:14,17 64:2  
vacant 68:17  
valid 63:1  
valued 41:13  
vehicle 36:15,18 51:8  
vehicles 34:9 36:16,20 37:5  
51:7  
versed 62:2  
versus 7:19,21,23 8:1 49:16  
72:9  
Vice 65:20 66:1  
victim 8:22 9:13 41:1,4  
victimized 14:2 30:11

victims 13:18  
video 7:8 28:19,20 31:10,12,  
20 40:4 42:12 43:17 44:12  
45:5 49:11 50:14,15,16 53:5,  
10,12,17  
videos 42:7 43:19 52:16,17,20  
violate 34:3  
violation 65:22  
violations 40:23  
violence 14:2 45:12  
violent 7:24 10:6  
virtual 59:25 60:6,8  
visibility 41:9  
visible 41:10  
visiting 9:25  
Visual 7:8  
voices 45:10,11  
volunteer 38:2  
volunteered 37:12  
volunteers 14:11  
vote 38:1 52:11 70:6,19 71:3,  
20 72:2 73:9,11,13  
voted 48:7 53:3  
voting... 72:24

---

W

---

wait 31:22,23,24 56:22 64:8  
72:23  
waiting 32:10 43:11  
wait... 12:4  
waking 44:6  
walk 14:21 31:8  
wanted 14:25 21:5,13 36:11  
38:5 53:1 64:3 76:12  
warned 37:25  
warrant 16:8 17:20,22 28:9

warranted 35:24  
Warren 37:24  
watch 62:6 66:22  
Wayne 23:5 24:3 27:22,25  
28:10 37:10  
weak 35:16  
weapon 47:12 48:3  
weapons 8:9,10  
website 32:13,14  
week 3:3 8:19 18:7 19:8,23  
20:7 32:6 36:22 38:10 53:20  
weekend 8:10  
weeks 21:7 33:18 36:23 44:7  
65:4 68:22  
well-known 29:12  
wellbeing 33:13  
were... 67:8,25  
we'll 5:8 64:8  
we're 50:11  
whatever... 56:1  
whichever 46:1  
White 12:24 29:4,6 38:7  
who've 12:15  
William 48:21  
Williams 31:3 32:22 39:22  
Willie 5:19,21  
willy- 46:22  
wisdom 4:19,25  
witnesses 9:14 12:17 15:6  
22:22  
woman 73:17  
women 35:13  
wondering 34:10,14  
Woods 2:1,15 3:11,23 4:6,12,  
14 5:5,10,12 6:7,10,13,16,20,  
23 7:10,13 10:10 11:23 13:9

15:17 16:11,15,18 17:2,6,10,  
14 18:14,18 19:16,18 20:10,  
12,25 21:2,19,23 22:2,6,12  
25:15 26:14,17,20 27:21,25  
28:12 29:7,15,19,23 30:4,6,  
22,25 31:5 32:8,13,17,20 34:5  
35:4,8 36:10 37:6 38:12,20,  
23,24 40:9,11 41:22 42:1  
43:2,7,13 44:21,25 46:14 47:6  
48:5,11,14,16,18,24 49:6  
50:19,21,23 52:5,9,17 53:19  
54:2,4,24 56:2,8,17,19 57:5  
59:22 61:10 62:1,8,10,13,16,  
24 63:2,6,9,12,17 64:6,12,15,  
19,25 65:10 66:8 67:5,8,10,  
12,19,21 68:1,10,23 69:11,17,  
20,23 70:1,3,6,14,21 71:8,23  
72:6,10,12,17,25 73:8,13,14,  
20,24 74:2,5,16 75:4,12  
76:10,17 77:1,5

**word** 36:14

**words** 48:4 76:17

**work** 4:4 12:9,13,19 38:8 39:2,  
8,10,13 41:19 46:24 49:13  
56:1

**worked** 10:5,6 28:6 30:11

**working** 3:15 12:6 13:4 20:4  
22:20 23:12 24:15 37:25 39:4,  
5 46:12 47:22 56:2

**Workplace** 14:19

**works** 33:6 36:12 41:12 55:20,  
24 56:3 61:21

**worst** 9:13

**would've** 61:5

**wound** 47:19,24 48:1,3

**write** 38:7

**writing** 24:20,23 25:14 44:17,  
23 68:7

**written** 13:24 57:24

**wrong** 37:14,15

**wrongful** 50:25

**wrote** 34:23

---

Y

---

**Yakata** 7:6

**yards** 36:16

**yay** 71:5

**year** 7:18,19,21,23,25 8:1 13:1  
19:5 33:2 54:11 57:18

**year-old** 19:24

**years** 9:22 10:5,6 13:1 24:5,7  
31:22 54:11 55:22 75:22,23

**yesterday** 13:11 30:9,10 33:8

**young** 9:2 35:6,7,9 37:11 39:1,  
13 40:2 54:9 58:15 70:22  
73:17

**youth** 14:11 18:22,25

**you...** 64:8

**You'd** 29:7

**you're** 26:3 66:2

---

Z

---

**Zoom** 38:22 41:23,24